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ARDS AND NORTH DOWN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Back to Agenda

12 September 2023

Dear SirlMadam

You are hereby invited to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee of the Ards and
North Down Borough Council which will be held the Council Offices, 2 Church Street,

Mewtownards on MONDAY, 18 September 2023 commencing at 7.00pm.

Yours faithfully

Stephen Reid
Chief Executive

Ards and North Down Borough Council

oW N
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We have prepared this report for Ards and North Down
Borough Council’s sole use. You must not disclose it to
any third party, guote or refer to it, without our written
consent and we assume no responsibility to any other
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1. Key Messages

This report summarises the key matters from our audit of the 2022-23 Ards
and North Down Borough Council financial statements which we must report
to the Audit Committee, as those charged with governance. We would like
to thank the Director of Corporate Services and his staff for their assistance
during the audit process.

Proposed Audit Opinion

It is proposed that the Local Government Auditor (LGA) will report on the
2022-23 financial statements with an unqualified audit opinion, without
modification.

Proposed Audit Certificate

It is also proposed that the Local Government Auditor will certify completion
of the audit of accounts of the Council in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local
Government Code of Audit Practice. The audit certificate closes the audit
and marks the point when the Local Government Auditor's statutory
responsibilities in respect of the audit of the accounts for the period covered
by the certificate have been discharged.

The Audit Certificate is included at Appendix Two.

Misstatements

Financial Statement Adjustments

The net effect of adjustments on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet were £nil and were classification
only.

Uncorrected misstatements
We are not proposing any uncorrected misstatements.
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Audit Findings

During the audit we reviewed internal controls; accounting systems; and
procedures to the extent considered necessary for the effective
performance of the audit. We have identified one priority one
recommendation in relation to the internal control environment as outlined
in Section 4 of this Report.

Full details of findings are included at Findings from the Audit.

Proper Arrangements

Under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005, the Local
Government Auditor should be satisfied that a Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. We are satisfied that the Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. However, we have identified a number of areas for
improvement in relation to policies that are overdue for review.

Full details of findings are included at Findings from the Audit.

Status of the Audit
Following resolution of the following points:

= review and receipt of revised statements of accounts incorporating all
previously advised changes - NIAO and ASM;
close out of final review points and queries; and
close out of expenditure and procurement testing,

the Chief Financial Officer will sign the Statement of Accounts together with
a letter of representation, the proposed wording of which is included at
Appendix One.

The total audit fee charged is in line with that set out in our Audit Strategy.

Independence

We consider that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC)
Ethical Standard and that, in our professional judgment, we are
independent and our objectivity is not compromised.
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No non-audit services were provided to the entity.

Management of information and personal data

The Council is required to comply with the UK General Data Protection
Regulations (UK GDPR) in the handling and storage of personal data. Those
Charged with Governance should ensure they have made sufficient
enquiries of management to form a view on whether there were any
significant specific data incidents which should be disclosed in the
Governance Statement. We are unaware of any data handling incidents
during the year other than those disclosed within the narrative report.
Confirmation to this effect has been sought within the letter of
representation included at Appendix One.

During the course of our audit we have access to personal data to support
our audit testing. We have established processes to hold this data securely
within encrypted files and to destroy it where relevant at the conclusion of
our audit. We can confirm that we have discharged those responsibilities
communicated to you in accordance with the requirements of UK General
Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and Data Protection Act 2018.

Performance Improvement

The outcome from our work in respect of Part 12 of the Local Government
Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 on Performance Improvement will be reported
separately to those charged with governance, as set out in the timetable in
the 2022-23 Audit Strategy.

Actions for the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee should:

+ Review the findings set out in this report, including the draft letter of
representation and audit certificate at Appendices one and two
respectively.
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2. Audit Scope

We have completed our audit of the 2022-23 financial statements in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) issued by
the Financial Reporting Council; with Practice Note 10 ‘Audit of Financial
Statements of Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom’;
and with the Audit Strategy presented to the Audit Committee in March
2023.

There are no new matters to communicate concerning the planned scope
and timing of the audit.
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3. Significant Risks

The significant risks identified in our Audit Strategy have been addressed
as follows:

Significant Risk 1
Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240, there is a presumed significant risk of material
misstatement due to fraud through management override of controls.

Audit Response
As required by ISA (UK) 240, we:

+ tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general
ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the
financial statements;

« Review accounting estimates for biases and evaluated whether the
circumstances producing the bias, if any, represent a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud; and

+ Considered significant transactions that are outside the normal
course of business for the entity, or that otherwise appear to be
unusual.

OQutcome

No issues were noted in respect of management override of controls.
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Significant Risk 2
Risk of fraud in revenue recognition

Under ISA(UK) 240, there is also a presumed risk of fraud in revenue
recognition, albeit rebuttable. We have assessed this risk to be significant
in relation to the Council’s main income streams (i.e. income streams
relating to community planning; economic development and planning; and
operations).

Audit Response
We carried out the following procedures:

+ Documented our understanding of the controls and procedures in
place around revenue recognition;

+ \Verified income received from District Rates and Government
Grants to supporting documentation and subsequent receipt to gain
comfort over the completeness of income;

+ Analytically reviewed other material income streams, investigating
any large and/or unusual variances; and

¢ Performed walkthroughs and substantive testing of income.

Outcome

Mo issues were identified in relation to revenue recognition.
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Significant Risk 3
Financial Resilience

The current cost of living crisis and high inflation rates have had a
significant impact on council finances. There are continuing challenges for
councils to deliver a balanced budget within the current environment. Costs
have increased in multiple areas, such as utilities, construction, and pay
settlements.

Audit Response
We:

+ Considered the Chief Financial Officer’s assessment of the going
concern basis for the preparation of the accounts;

+« Examined financial projections and plans prepared by Council; and

+ Considered the disclosures regarding the financial position included
within the 2022-23 Statement of Accounts.

Outcome
The Council identified the following key challenges to financial resilience:

pay inflation;

energy inflation;

general inflation;

procurement and contractor price increases; and

delivery of capital plan and major capital repairs (Bangor Aurora).

We noted that in viewing the impact of these challenges there was
appropriate management, using a mix of cash and reserves. The
Department also permitted the use of previously allocated Covid funding to
support these pressures.

The Council’s policy was to hold General Fund levels of at least 7% of gross
expenditure for the year. While this was considered modest for the Council
this outturn position was not achieved (6.2%). In July 2023, the Council
approved an increase of this indicator to 7.5%. Further detail on this
matter is included at Finding 1.

The financial outlook for the Council remains challenging and uncertain. We
reviewed the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan and the underpinning
“rules” agreed by Council regarding financial monitoring over the medium
term. We note that action is required by Management to ensure successful
delivery of planned outcomes, including astute financial management and

7
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constraint. Based on the assumptions used for the financial projections, the
Council should be able to achieve a balanced position. Any changes to
borrowings or large scale expenditure will be expected to have appropriate
review at full Council and it is expected that the delivery of the Bangor
Seafront project will consume time and resource to ensure successful
delivery. Cost pressures associated with the unknown impacts of inflation
and price constraint in capital procurement may provide a challenging
project outlook. However, the Council should also realise income streams
associated with the DfI debtor for land that was vested (from 2021-22 and
currently included in debtors at £1.8m) and the outcome of HMRC's ruling
on VAT on services (contingent asset).
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4. Findings from the Audit

Financial Reporting

As part of our audit, we evaluate the qualitative aspects of accounting
practices and financial reporting. In this section we draw to your attention
any significant changes or issues in respect of accounting policies;
accounting estimates; and financial statement disclosures.

The Council has robust processes in place for the production of the accounts
and continue to produce good quality supporting working papers. Officers
dealt efficiently with audit queries, effectively prioritising them, and the
audit process has been completed within the planned timescales.

Accounting Policies

Accounting policies adopted by the Council have not changed or altered
since the prior year financial statements. On this basis we can conclude
that the quality, effectiveness and transparency of financial reporting and
accounting at the Council is appropriate.

Accounting Estimates

We examined the appropriateness of accounting estimates and judgements
and are content with the consistency of assumptions and the degree of
prudence reflected in the recorded amounts.

Financial Statement Disclosures

We have made a number of suggestions to improve narrative disclosures
and to ensure completeness of the disclosures required under the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting and other relevant guidance.
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Going Concern

We considered the Medium Term Financial Strategy and while the financial
outlook appears challenging, no events or conditions were identified from
our audit work that cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting. Further details
have been included at significant risk 3.

Narrative Report

The MNarrative Report was considered to be consistent with our
understanding of the business, and was in line with the other information
provided in the financial statements.

Remuneration Report

The parts of the Remuneration Report to be audited were considered to be
properly prepared in accordance with Department for Communities (DfC)
directions issued under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015. A number of changes were suggested
in relation to various disclosures contained within. These changes have
been made.

Governance Statement

Qur review of the Governance Statement confirmed that it complies with
the Code of Practice and the Department for Communities Accounts
Direction. We provided management with a number of minor observations
and suggested disclosure changes to improve the narrative and
completeness of disclosures within the Governance Statement.

Legality, Propriety and Losses

We found no issues in relation to illegality, impropriety or losses during our
audit.

10
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Internal Control

Mo material weaknesses in the design and implementation of the Council’s
internal control systems have come to our attention during the audit.
However, certain internal control weaknesses were identified during audit
testing and have been detailed below.

Related Parties

No significant matters were arising during the audit in connection with the
Council’s related parties.

1 |
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Audit Recommendations

This section outline the findings arising from our audit, as well as
management’s response and target date for implementation. Our findings
are defined as:

« Priority 1 - significant issues for the attention of senior management
which may have the potential to result in material weakness in
internal control.

« Priority 2 - important issues to be addressed by management in
their areas of responsibility.

« Priority 3 - issues of a more minor nature which represent best
practice.

Finding 1
Disposal of Ards Leisure Centre

We reported last year that the Council disposed of the former Ards Leisure
Centre site to the Department for Infrastructure (DfI) on 1 April 2021 for
due consideration of £1.8m. DfI had not made payment for the site at 31
March 2022 and this payment continues to be outstanding at 31 March
2023. We note that the vesting order for this disposal became operative
during the 2021-22 financial year (19 May 2021), with compensation due
to the Council of £1.8m. The Council’s compliance team followed up this
matter with DfI and while they remain content that this amount is fully
recoverable there was no commitment in writing from DfI. On 30 May 2022,
Dfl stated to Council that “the matter of compensation is currently the
subject of negotiations between the Dfl Departmental Solicitor's Office and
the legal representatives of AND Council. Until the negotiations are
successfully concluded, an invoice should not have been submitted”.

Further communication between the Council Chief Executive and the Dfl's
Permanent Secretary in January and February 2023 would suggest that the
Department are holding its view that it will not pay on receipt of an invoice.
The Permanent Secretary noted that as the wvaluation of the site was
dependent on a number of assumptions around title and that title for part
of the site is missing, this could affect the final valuation. She advised that
the DSO is taking forward this matter and until such time as instructed, DfI
are asking the Council to issue a credit note or withdraw the invoice.

While there is certainty that an asset transferred and consideration is due
there is some uncertainty as to the value the DfI will pay. The Council has
no reason to believe that the value will be less that £1.8m and believe that
the title issue while complex, can be resolved.

12
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We consider that while a provision for bad debt may be required when the
matter is resolved, it is not likely to be material.

Priority Rating

1

Recommendation

We recommend that:

L]

the Council seek to engage with the DSO to ascertain the time period
they expect to resolve the title matter (given the passage of time
since the land was vested) and whether, or if, the valuation of land
where title is causing no issue could be paid over;

the Council consider whether, or if, there are related financial
implications to not receiving the full amount plus interest or if a bad
debt provision is required.

Management Response (including target date)

[text]

13
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Finding 2

Reserves policy

We note that the Council’s policy is to hold General Fund levels of at least
7% of gross expenditure for the year. The Council has consistently met this
target in prior years. In 2022-23, the level of General Funds held at year
end was 6.2% of gross expenditure, falling below the target.

In July 2023, recognising the need to increase the General Fund levels held,
the Council made a decision to move this target achievement level to 7.5%.

Priority Rating
2

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council ensures that target reserves are achieved.

Management Response (including target date)

14
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Finding 3
Leases

Qur review identified that the annual rent for the Foreshore and bed of the
sea at Bangor Bay, Co. Down commercial area has been set at 13.5% of
gross annual turnover. However, we noted that this rate has not been
reviewed or updated since it was set in September 1993,

Priority Rating
3

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council conducts rent reviews on its leased assets
on a more frequent basis, to ensure that rates charged remain appropriate.

Management Response (including target date)
[text]

15
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Finding 4

Declarations of Interest

Qur review of Councillors” Conflict of Interests declarations identified that
while all Councillors had completed returns, in two instances, these returns
were not signed by the Councillor.

Priority Rating
3

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council ensure all Declarations of Conflict of
Interest returns completed by Councillors are appropriately signed by them.

Management Response (including target date)

[text]

16
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Finding 5
Proper arrangements

While we are satisfied that the Council has in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources,
the following areas for improvement have been identified and we note that
some of these are repeat points that require resource to implement:

« some work continues to be needed to ensure that all policies are up
to date, complete and reflective of actual practice. As part of our
consideration of proper arrangements, we noted further updates are
required to either review existing policies, approve draft policies or to
review new policies for the following areas: Staff Travel Policy
(2010); Employee Expenses and Benefits Policy (2013); Capability
Policy (2015); the Council’s IT policies; the Business Continuity Plan
is in draft; updated Scheme of Delegation is in draft;

= we note that a resource/succession planning policy has not yet been
implemented however development of a policy position is underway;

« fraud training has not be provided to all Council staff and Members
(although we appreciate some fraud training has been undertaken by
a small number of Officers); and

« the Council’s ICT system is not ISO 27001 accredited and the Council
has not sought any cyber security accreditation. The Council
appreciate that following a number of internal audit
recommendations relating to the cyber control environment that
further resource is needed in this area.

Priority Rating
2

Recommendation
We recommend that:

« the Council continues work to ensure that all policies are up to date
and formally approved;

« fraud training is provided to all Council staff and Members; and

« the Council considers obtaining formal IT accreditation.

Management Response (including target date)

[text]

17
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Proper Arrangements

Under the Local Government (Morthern Ireland) Order 2005, the Local
Government Auditor should be satisfied that a Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. We are satisfied that the Council has in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources, however, a number of areas for improvement have been
identified - see Finding 5 in previous page.

No priority 1 recommendations were made in our prior year Report to those
charged with Governance.

18
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5. Misstatements

Adjusted misstatements

During the audit process we identified no misstatements above our clearly
trivial threshold.

Uncorrected misstatements

We are proposing no unadjusted misstatements which exceed our clearly
trivial threshold.

19
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Appendix One — Draft Letter of Representation

The Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
BELFAST

Bl/7 1EU

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION: Ards and North Down Borough Council 2022-
23

As Chief Financial Officer of the Ards and North Down Borough Council I
have fulfilled my responsibility for preparing accounts that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, total income and expenditure, cash flows,
and movements in reserves; and the related notes of the Council for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

In preparing the accounts, I was required to:

= observe the accounts direction issued by the Department for
Communities (DfC), including the relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements and apply appropriate accounting policies on a
consistent basis;

= make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; and

= state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed
and disclosed and explain any material departures in the accounts;
and

= make an assessment that the Council is a going concern and will
continue to be in operation throughout the next year; and ensure that
this has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

I confirm that for the financial year ended 31 March 2023:

= having considered and enquired as to the Council’'s compliance with
law and regulations, I am not aware of any actual or potential non-
compliance that could have a material effect on the ability of the
Council to conduct its business or on the results and Balance Sheet
disclosed in the accounts;

20
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= all accounting records have been provided to you for the purpose of
your audit and all transactions undertaken by the Council have been
properly recorded and reflected in the accounting records. All other
records and related information, including minutes of all management
meetings which you have requested have been supplied to you; and

= the information provided regarding the identification of related parties
is complete; and the related party disclosures in the financial
statements are adequate.

All material accounting policies as adopted are detailed in note 1 to
the accounts.

Internal Control

I have fulfiled my responsibility as Chief Financial Officer for the design
and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect error and I
have disclosed to you the results of my assessment of the risk that the
financial statements could be materially misstated.

I confirm that I have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control and that the disclosures I have made are in accordance with DoF
guidance on the Governance Statement.

Fraud

I have fulfiled my responsibility as Chief Financial Officer for the design
and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and I
have disclosed to you the results of my assessment of the risk that the
financial statements could be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

I am not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council and
no allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements
has been communicated to me by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

Assets

General

All assets included in the Balance Sheet were in existence at the reporting
period date and owned by the Council and free from any lien, encumbrance
or charge, except as disclosed in the accounts. The Balance Sheet includes
all tangible assets owned by the Council.

21
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Non Current Assets

All assets over £5,000 are capitalised. They are revalued regularly to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value
at the year-end. Annually a full revaluation is performed on 1/5th of the
Council’s assets and all other assets subject to a desk based valuation. All
assets will receive a full revaluation as a minimum, every 5 years, by Land
and Property Services (LPS). Depreciation is calculated to reduce the net
book amount of each asset to its estimated residual value by the end of its
estimated useful life in the Council’s operations.

Other Current Assets

On realisation in the ordinary course of the Council’s operations the other
current assets in the Balance Sheet are expected to produce at least the
amounts at which they are stated. Adequate provision has been made
against all amounts owing to the Council which are known, or may be
expected, to be irrecoverable.

Liabilities
General

All liabilities have been recorded in the Balance Sheet.

There were no significant losses in the year and no provisions for losses
were required at the year end.

All litigation and claims have been disclosed to you and correctly accounted
for.

Provisions
Provision is made in the financial statements for:

Insurance: £494k
Environmental: £50k
Legal: £30k

Other: £729k

& & & @

Contingent Liabilities

There are a number of legal claims or potential claims against the Council
the outcome of which cannot at present be estimated with certainty. Full
provision is made in the financial statements for all liabilities which are
expected to materialise.

I am not aware of any pending litigation which may result in significant loss
to the Council, and I am not aware of any action which is or may be brought
against the Council under the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989
and the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

22
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Other Disclosures

Results

Except as disclosed in the accounts, the results for the year were not
materially affected by transactions of a sort not usually undertaken by the
Council, or circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurring nature.

Contingent Asset

The Council, together with the other 10 district councils in Northern
Ireland, is participating in a legal action against His Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) to recover previously overdeclared output VAT in
respect of leisure and recreational income, which arose because HMRC
did not accept that the Council provides leisure and recreational activities
pursuant to a special legal regime without causing any significant
distortion of competition. Although Mid Ulster District Council (as lead
council in the litigation) succeeded in its claim to the First Tier Tax
Tribunal, HMRC subsequently appealed to the Upper Tier Tax Tribunal,
which was successful. The Tribunal released its decision on 19 July 2022
to allow the appeal and remit the matter back to the First Tier Tax
Tribunal for consideration.

Mid Ulster District Council subsequently sought and received permission
to appeal the Upper Tier Tax Tribunal decision to the Court of Appeal and
a Hearing was scheduled to take place in May 2023. On 26 January 2023,
HMRC notified Mid Ulster District Council that it decided to pay all of the
Local Authority Leisure Service claims and proceeded to publish an
associated Revenue and Customs Brief on 3 March 2023. Mid Ulster
District Council’s appeal to the Court of Appeal is currently stayed until
15 September 2023 to allow both parties to time to seek a resolution of
the matter. If resolution is reached, it will take time to conclude the
matter; alternatively, if there is no resolution, Mid Ulster District Council
shall make application for its appeal to be re-listed for mention. In either
case, at this stage, it's too early to access any associated financial
impact, but if the matter is resolved to the Mid Ulster District Council’s
satisfaction, the benefit to this Council could be substantial.

Uncorrected Misstatements
There were no uncorrected misstatements brought to my attention.

Events after the Reporting Period

Except as disclosed in the accounts, there have been no material changes
since the reporting period date affecting liabilities and commitments, and
no events or transactions have occurred which, though properly excluded
from the accounts, are of such importance that they should have been
brought to notice.

23



Agenda 6b / Item 6b.pdf

Accounting Estimates

The methods, significant assumptions and the data used in making the
accounting estimates and the related disclosures are appropriate to achieve
recognition, measurement or disclosure that is in accordance with the
financial reporting framework.

Management of Personal Data
Except as disclosed in the Narrative Report, there have been no personal
data related incidents in 2022-23 which are required to be reported.

Mr Stephen Reid
Ards and North Down Borough Council
September 2023

24
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Appendix Two - Audit Certificate

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARDS AND
NORTH DOWN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

I have audited the financial statements of Ards and North Down Borough
Council for the year ended 31 March 2023 under the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes
including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting on the United Kingdom supported
by UK adopted international accounting standards.

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is
described in that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and
statutory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022-23, of the financial
position of Ards and North Down Borough Council as at 31 March
2023 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regqulations (Northern Ireland)
2015 and the Department for Communities’ directions issued
thereunder.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of this certificate. My staff and I are independent of Ards
and MNorth Down Borough Council in accordance with the ethical
requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that Ards and North
Down Borough Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Ards and North Down
Borough Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
ISsUe.

The going concern basis of accounting for Ards and North Down Borough
Council is adopted in consideration of the requirements set out in the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, which require entities to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide will
continue into the future.

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this

report.
Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement
of Accounts other than the financial statements, the parts of the
Remuneration Report described in that report as having been audited, and
my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible
for the other information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report
that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

26



Agenda 6b / Item 6b.pdf

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Department for
Communities’ directions made under the Local Government
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

« the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023 is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which I report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Ards and North
Down Borough Council and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, I have not identified material misstatements in the Statement of
Accounts.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report
to you if:
* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

= does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022-

23;

= does not comply with proper practices specified by the
Department for Communities;

* is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am
aware of from my audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records; or

o I have not received all of the information and explanations 1
require for my audit, or

« [ issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local
Government (Morthern Ireland) Order 2005; or

= [ designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005 any recommendation made to the Council;
or
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| exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19
to 21 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial
Officer's Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

« the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view;

« such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free form material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error;

+ assessing the Ards and North Down Borough Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates that the
services provided by Ards and North Down Borough Council will
not continue to be provided in the future,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the
Local Government (Morthern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local
Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and to issue a certificate that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

I design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect material misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and
regulation, including fraud.

My procedures included:

+ obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework
applicable to the Ards and North Down Borough Council through
discussion with management and application of extensive public
sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and regulations I
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considered included the Local Government (Northern Ireland)
Order 2005;

« making enquires of management and those charged with
governance on Ards and North Down Borough Council’s
compliance with laws and regulations;

« making enquiries of internal audit, management and those
charged with governance as to susceptibility to irregularity and
fraud, their assessment of the risk of material misstatement due
to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud and irregularity;

« completing risk assessment procedures to assess the
susceptibility of Ards and North Down Borough Council's financial
statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might
occur. This included, but was not limited to, an engagement
director led engagement team discussion on fraud to identify
particular areas, transaction streams and business practices that
may be susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. As part
of this discussion, I identified potential for fraud in the following
areas: revenue recognition and posting of unusual journals;

« engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team
collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and
skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with the applicable
legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

« documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of
internal controls in place to mitigate risk of material misstatement
due to fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations;

« designing audit procedures to address specific laws and
regulations which the engagement team considered to have a
direct material effect on the financial statements in terms of
misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures included, but were not limited to, reading board and
committee minutes, and agreeing financial statement disclosures
to underlying supporting documentation and approvals as
appropriate; and

« addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override
of controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or
unexpected relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and
inappropriate or unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions
made in determining accounting estimates were indicative
of potential bias; and
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o investigating significant or unusual transactions made
outside of the normal course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my
certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Ards and North Down Borough
Council in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of
Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government
Bodies.

Certificate

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Ards and North
Down Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government
Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
BELFAST

BT7 1EU

Date
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MNarrative Repurt
Introduction

These financial statements set out Ards and North Down Borough Council's financial performance
during the financial year 2022/23 and its financial position at the end of that year. The Council's
financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2023 is as set out in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (pages 48-49), the Movement of Reserves Statement (pages 50-51), and
its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet (page 52) and Cash Flow Statement (page
53).

The financial statements follow approved accounting standards and are necessarily technical in parts.
It is the purpose of this narrative report to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts
in relation to the Council in addition to its main objectives, strategies and the principal risks it faces.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the Code) and the Department
for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 07/22 dated 10 February 2023 and are the
‘Statement of Accounts’ the Council is required to prepare under Regulation 7 of the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations 2015.

Organisation Overview and External Environment

The Council operates a traditional model of decision making for local government and is organised
into five directorates plus the Chief Executive’s Office. Each of these directorates are further divided
into Services as follows:

Internal Audit
Finance
Stravegic Transformation and Performance

Human Resources and Organisation
Development

Ervsironment | . PFrotection and

Administration

Waste and Cleansing
Azsets and Property

Regulatory Services

Regeneration
Strategic Capital Development
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The Council delivers a broad range of
local services covering among others:
community development, leisure, parks . .ment
and cemeteries, waste collection and . . o
disposal, economic development and
tourism, environmental health, building
control, planning and off-street car
parking. It directly employs over 800
staff and has a budget of EGGM. In
addition, it participates in a number of
strategic  parinerships  with  other
councils, private operators, public
bodies and third sector organisations in
order to deliver its wvision for the
Borough.

District Rates,
£55.4M
The Council vision is to make "Ards and
Morth Down a vibrant, connected, healthy, safe and prosperous place to be'. It has set its objectives
out in the context of its Corporate Plan Towards 2024, Service Plans are produced and published on
an annual basis, detailing how the Council intends to meet the Corporate Objectives. Key
improvement activities are also published annually in the Council's Performance Improvement Plan
(PIP).

The Council's Corporate Objectives are themed as follows:

-  PROSPERITY - Growing our .
Hit e
- ENVIRONMENT - Growing a R

cleaner, greener local and global
environment

- OPPORTUNITY = Growing the
lifelong potential of our community

Prosperity

GROWING
+  PRIDE - Growing empowerment, 1% BETTER
respect and safety in our ——— TOGETHER :
community T

« LIFE - Growing the health and
wellbeing of our residents

»  EXCELLENCE - Growing a high- i i drani
performing Council s ety P

The Council operates in the context of The Big Plan , which is the Community Plan for the Borough
(see below), Al its heart is an integrated approach to strategic development, not only for the Council,
but for everyone in the Borough who has an interest in making Ards and Morth Down a better place
to live, work, visit and invest. In 2022, a review of the Big Plan was Completed. The Big Plan Part Il |
Our Big Priorities identified 10 priorities for the Community Planning Partnership to focus on. The
Council's Corporate Plan, which sits below the Community Plan, is supported by key sirategies
including the Integrated Strateqgy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic Development and the
Integrated Strategy for Arts and Heritage. Internally the Council is working to deliver an agenda of
transformation to enhance and improve internal processes, as well as delivering, better engagement
with, and services for, the communities we serve.

p | 3
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The Council builds its culiure around the values below:

roles,

relationships.

and outcome focussed.

Back to Agenda

. Progressive — We will be proactive, ambitious,
innovative, forward thinking and outward looking.

. Respect — We will treat everyone in a fair and
equitable manner, respecting diversity and each other's

. Integrity — We will always be open, honest,
transparent, trustworthy and accountable in our business

. Delivery — We will ensure a "can do” atlilude, being
passionate about achieving results, performance driven,

. Excellence = We will strive to deliver continuously improving and excellent quality

services, whilst ensuring value for money.

Governance

The governance arrangements of the Council are set out in the Governance Statement (pages 15 -
33) and there have been no significant changes in approach in the course of the year, with the
exception of the necessity to move to remote working where possible for staff and Council meetings.

Operational Madel

The Council published the Big Plan for Ards and
Morth Down in March 2017, This details a
commitment from all partners who are members of
the Strategic Community Planning Partnership on the
five outcomes they will collectively work towards
achieving for the people of Ards and North Down. In
accordance with Community Planning Guidance, the
first Statement of Progress was published in
MNovember 2019. This initiated a review of the existing
implementation methodology and the agreement of a
refined list of ten community planning collaborative

priorities. A second statement of progress was BRI g s
published in November 2021. The Big Plan Part 1l. B b

was published in April 2022, This updated the whole population indicators and set out the issues the

Strategic Community Plan will focus its attention on.

The Big Plan provides an overarching context for the
Council’s Corporate Plan. Activities to progress the
outcomes and priorities resulting from the Big Plan
and Corporate Plan are set out in the Council's annual
Service Delivery Plans for each of its 17 Services.
Service budgets are aligned to the annual Plans.
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Inputs

# Council receives over 80% of its funding through the local property tax (often referred to as
the district rates) and 13% from fees and charges for the use of a range of services.

# Council employs more than 900 staff, These staff are recruited according to the Local
Government Staff Commission guidance. The Council's Leaming and Development Sirategy
provides the framework for maintaining and enhancing the skills of the workforce, through on
the job training, Pride in Performance conversations, formal training, part-time study and
mentoring.

# The Council owns 351 properties and has a fleet of 205 vehicles, all of which are maintained
in a proactive manner,

Activities and Outputs

The Council is organised into five directorates that are further divided into 18 service units with an
aim to provide customer and outcome focussed services to residents, businesses and wisitors.
Although these services concentrate specialised skills around common themes, the Council
endeavours to provide unified and complementary services using a range of collaborative forums,
such as Corporate Leadership Team, Heads of Service Team and Service Unit Managers Forum, in
addition to address ad hoc or specialist issues.

The Council engages with a number of sirategic partners in order to deliver some of its services within
its Community & Culture, Leisure, Waste & Cleansing, Regulatory, Regeneration, Tourism and
Economic Development Services.

The Council's Planning Service relies on extensive detailed input from a range of statutory consultees
that are outside the Council's authority, such as Government Departments, and which continue to
experience resourcing issues relating to staff in post and expertise. This has had a direct impact on
the processing of planning applications and, therefore, on the achievement of the statutory
performance indicators. In addition, the introduction of the new NI Planning Portal, which went live on
05 December 2022, affected output and performance. Work is ongoing (o resolved issues with the
system.

In addition, Councillors participate in a range of regional bodies and Officers participate in a wide
range of local government professional groups, in order to provide co-ordination across local
government in Morthern Ireland.

Ouitcomes

The outcomes within the Council's Corporate Plan are aligned to those within the Big Plan (the
Community Plan). The Council, as faciltator of community planning for the Borough works in
partnership with statutory partners, government departments and the community and voluntary sector
to work towards these high-level aspirational outcomes. Workstreams (formally referred to as
thematic groups) have been established to help focus Council resources on these oulcomes.
Workstreams have been set up for all five outcomes.

A workstream that is a sub-group of our Strategic Community Planning Partnership is focused on
public estate and land issues, The purpose of this group is to share information about capital build
projects and to identify areas where collaboration will improve the outcomes for our citizens. The
Council has shared the review of its estate with Strategic Partners and this had led to Expressions of
Interest being put forward to co-locate front facing services in, for example, the proposed
Newtownards Citizen Hub, Other discussions are ongoing about the land requirements of different
partners and a shared project to map land ownership on Council's Geographic Information System
(GIS) portal 1s undenvay.
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Aligning Corporate Plan and Community Plan outcomes has resulted in
increased levels of collaboration across Council directorates to the benefit
of the citizen. The Council applied to be part of the World Health
Organisation’s Age Friendly programme in recognition of our ageing
population. An Age Friendly Alliance has been established with
representation across Government Departments and community planning
partners. Internally, cross-directorate programmes have been developed
that recognise the contribution each service Jmakes to ensuring all people
in Ards and Morth Down live in communities where they are respected,
safe and feel secure. Resources are being shared to develop walkability
audits of public spaces that will demonstrate high levels of stakeholder
engagement and that we are listening to our citizens. An Over 50s Council
has been established and members are helping to develop a new Age
Friendly Action Plan that will be informed by their needs, opinions and
experiences. A hard copy (and digital version) Big Guide to Age Friendly Services was produced and
distributed via our Age Friendly Alliance. A Dementia Friendly Workstream Group (aligned with Age
Friendly) has also been established.

Partnerships to deliver against our outcomes have been established across all PEOPLE priorities and
Community Plan Priorities. This is enabling us to use our resources to contribute to other important
agendas such as health reform and how local health commissioning will happen in the future.
Collaboration is happening between community development, education, and the police to improve
how young people have a voice via the establishment of a Youth Council. This is directly contributing
to our putcome that all people in Ards and North Down fulfil their lifelong potential.

An ‘outcomes approach’ is still relatively new. It relies on having access to an evidence base that
can be used to measure whether the work Council and its partners are undertaking is making a
difference. We have used our resources to undertake a comprehensive assessment of wellbeing that
helps us identify the issues we need to focus on to contribute to the five outcomes identified.

In addition, the period covered by this report was dominated by high inflationary economic
environment. The Council benefited from Government support in respect of utility prices although
Council still needed use £5M of reserves to mitigate these cost pressures.

The Cost-of-living crisis highlighted the struggles people
lving in Ards and Morth Down face. Via the work of the
Community Support Steering Group the Borough opened its
first Social Supermarket — located in Newtownards but
operating an outreach model across the Borough. It also
developed a campaign to promote the location and activities
of Warm Spaces that opened in the winter for people who
struggled with the cost of heating their homes adequately.

welcome

P

Despite these challenges the Council continued to deliver
positive outcomes for residents and businesses showing a
high degree of innovation and effectiveness.

How the Council spent its resources is set out in its Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
statement on pages 46-47.

Back to Agenda
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Risks and Opportunities
In all its strategic planning activities the Council identifies risk and opportunities as well as seeking to
identify mitigations and to take advantage of potential positive outcomes.

Risks

4+ Brexit
The UK transition period formally came to an end on 31 December 2020. As a number of
‘grace’ periods are still in operation (when the UK does not have to implement all the
requirements of the Northern Ireland Protocol), the implications for local authorities and the
wider public sector continue to remain uncertain. SOLACE continue to co-ordinate the
activities of councils in this regard.

Uncertainty exists on future funding, such as access to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, to
replace EU funds, which Council has relied on to optimise delivery of many support
programmes. This will put a strain on Council resources should it not be in place post March
2023 or be forthcoming in a timely manner.

+ Political Instability
The current uncertainty regarding the re-establishment of the Morthern Ireland Assembly and
Morthern Ireland Executive may have significant impact on the Council’s ability to plan in the
short to medium term due to the lack of a multi-year Executive budget. This provides difficulties
particularly in respect of multi-year programmes and capital projects.

# Northernireland Executive Budget
Some Council services are at risk due to budget cuts that are expected due to the very tight
budgetary settlement for the Executive. This uncertainty will have implications in the delivery
of community, economic development and regeneration areas, curntailing Council's ability to
assist those in our community who need help and support during the cost-of-living crisis,
support businesses and regenerate communities.

+ Resourcing
The Council has ambitious plans and strategies for the pursuit of prosperity in the Borough.
Resourcing these plans requires finance, assets and talent. Currently, in common with many
organisations, the Council is experiencing significant difficulties in recruiting staff and in
managing rising utility costs. These pressures will inhibit the Council's ability to deliver on its
plans.

Council must both prioritise, and regularly assess, its appetite and tolerance for risk in order to ensure
it is fit for purpose to deliver on the objectives set.

Opportunities

¥ Sustainability commitments
Ards and Morth Down Borough Council was the first local authority 7
in Northemn Ireland to declare a climate emergency and has &
developed a Roadmap to Sustainability (which was approved in
March 2021). We view sustainability as a unique selling point for
the Council, which can help us to deliver better services for
residents, businesses and wisitors. We are committed to
integrating sustanability into all business practices moving
forward and progress has been made on this throughout the
reporting period (Sustainability Case Studies). In January 2023,
officers requested a review by Internal Audit of the Roadmap to
Sustainability to ensure that progress on the commitments was
being made. This audit highlighted a number of actions to
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enhance the current Roadmap and officers are currenthy working towards these, with a review
being undertaken by winter 2023.

¥ Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD)
The BRCD executive body comprises this Council along with Antrim and Mewtownabbey
Borough Council, Belfast City Council, Lishurn and Castlereagh City Council, Mid and East
Antrim Borough Council, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council, the Queen's University
Belfast and the Ulster University (the Belfast Region).

The objective of the BRCD is to deliver a step change in the region's economic fortunes and
help achieve inclusive growth. It will see the UK Government invest £350 million into the
Belfast Region over the next 15 years. This figure will be matched by the Northern Ireland
Executive and a further co-investment of upwards of £150 million from Belfast Region City
Deal partners.

Four “pillars” for the BRCD proposition have been established:

Employability and skills
Innovation and digital
Infrastructure

Tourism and Regeneration

Ards and North Down contribute to the regional
Employability and Skills programme and benefit from
capital funding towards a regional digital programme
and projects as autlined below.

The Council is also due to receive circa E£40M
towards the Bangor Waterfront development, our
ambitious plans to redevelop Bangor's beautiful
seafront with a new, sustainable, tourism and leisure
attractions.

It will also benefit from funding to create an
Innovation Hub to support the Creative Industries in
the borough.

¥ Redevelopment of Queen's Parade

Bangor Marine Ltd.’s comprehensive planning application for the development site located at
Queen's Parade and Marine Gardens in Bangor was approved by the Council’s Planning
Committee in January 2021, After a significant delay, while the Department for Infrastructure
considered the approval, the application was finally returned to the Council in March 2022.
This is a significant milestone towards seeing the major, planned £50 million regeneration
project delivered in the City.
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Strategy and Resource allocation

The Council is seeking to provide high quality services and facilities in line with its corporate priorities.
Resources are allocated to ensure we can meet these objectives along with those outlined in a variety
of supporting strategies.

¥ Tourism, Economic Development and Regeneration
The Integrated Strategy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic Development presents a
coherent vision for the pursuit of prosperity in the Borough of Ards and North Down. It
responds to the vision and outcomes of the Community Plan for the area and is to be used as
the common point of reference for all those contributing to the growth of our economy, the
welcoming of visitors and the improvement of our places, both urban and rural.

Through targeted interventions and programmes and one 0 one advice, businesses are
supported throughout their business lifecycle, helping to create, sustain and grow jobs.
Working in partnership, those furthest from the labour market have been supported to achieve
the skills required to be employment ready. These actions have and continue to contribute
sustaining our local econamy.

The development of Experiences has been key to broadening the portfolio of activity available
to increase visitors and revenue to the Borough. Council has therefore developed a ‘Borough
Strategic Direction for Events' and a ‘Marketing and Communications Strategy.’

¥ Arts and Heritage
The Arts and Heritage strategy defines how arts and heritage will help achieve Ards and North
Down's cultural, social and economic ambitions by enriching its people and places and
empowering its residents to make the most of their creativity.

It responds to the vision and outcomes of the Big Plan for Ards and North Down and
contributes to the delivery of the Integrated Strategy for Tourism, Regeneration and Economic
Development 2018 - 2030, responding to its vision and propositions from the arts and heritage
perspective.

¥ Roadmap to Sustainability

The Roadmap to Sustainability summarises the key sustainability content and the benefits
which will be realised from the successful implementation of the various integrated Council
strategies and Plans either currently in place or under development. Internal Audit camied out
a review of the Roadmap to Sustainability to ensure that progress on the commitments was
being made. This audit highlighted a number of actions to enhance the current Roadmap and
officers are currently working towards these, with a review being undertaken by winter 2023.
Some of the main recommendations were to include reference to the Climate Change Act and
to undertake an analysis of resources required to carry out the actions that are currently
committed to. The Sustainability fund is now available and officers are encouraged to avail of
this if a project can demonstrate sustainable objectives using the business case process.

¥ Capital Investment Plan
The Council uses a project priortisation approach to assess and prioritise potential capital
investments. The Council's ambitious capital investment involves scoring each project across
a range of agreed, standardised critena, to include elements such as strategic alignment, cost
and risk, The resulting ranked project list is used as a basis for decision making on which, and
how many projects will progress, depending on the desired investiment level,

¥  Medium-Term Financial Strategy
The Council continues to consider carefully its financial resilience in its budgeting cycles. This
budgeting process is guided by the Medium-Term Financial Strategy which sets out 11 guiding
principles which provide a framework in which to develop future budgets. These budgets for
the next financial year are developed in the context of a Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP).
In addition, the Council has developed a 10-year district rate projection to enable it to forecast
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the impact of its longer-term capital investment plans. The MTFP was reviewed in the new
budgeting cycle for 2022/23 taking into account the financial implications of the current
inflationary economic environment.

There are a range of strategic workstreams underway as assist in delivering the Big Plan and
Corporate Plan. These include the development of a comprehensive Workforce Planning Strategy,
Estates Strategy Programme, Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme.

Performance
FINAMCIAL

The results for the year are set out in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
reflects the accounting deficit for the year to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). A number of adjustments are then made to this (see note 4 on page 82) to arrive at the actual
surplus for the year on the Council's General Fund, as shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
(pages 50-51) and summarised below:

2022123 2021/22

£'000 £1000
Cost of Continuing Operations (71,268) (62,923)
Other Operating Expenditure or Income 55  (261)
Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (3,404)  (3,843)
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 62,921 59,792
Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services (11,696) (7,235) '
Adjustment between Accounting and Funding bases 8982 10,808
Met Transfers (to) or from Reserves and Funds 2,670 (2,613) '
Surplus [ (Deficit) (44) 960
Balance brought forward 5,487 4527
General Fund Balance at 31 March 2023 5443 5487

In the 2021/22 financial year the Council was able to set aside significant funds into Earmarked Fund
to allow it to mitigate the impact of significant inflationary challenges it was likely to face in future
years. These funds have been released during 2022/23 to mitigate the anticipated pressures. In
addition, income performed strongly during the year, surpassing pre-pandemic levels, and as a result
Council has been able to set aside strategic funds for transformation, sustainability and tax base
development.

The Council's General Fund carmed forward is £5.4M (eguivalent to 6.2% of gross revenue
expenditure, down from 7.1% at 31 March 2022).

The Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2023 (page 52) shows a net worth of £211.3M, an increase
of £66.1M from the 31 March 2022 balance sheet, this is largely attributable to:

« the net increase in value of fixed assets (E12M);

= the decrease in outstanding loans (£3.1M); and

10 p |



Agenda 6c. / Item 6c¢.pdf

« the decrease in other long-term liabilities (£50.2M).

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Morthern Ireland), commonly
referred to as Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers Superannuation Committee, or
‘NILGOSC'. This scheme is currently in surplus and the £3.2M asset relating to the Council has been
appropriately reflected in these financial statements. Details regarding the pension liability are in
Note 22 (Page 103).

The Council's Usable Reserves at 31 March 2023, with a comparison to the opening position, is set
out in the following table:

Reserves: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £'000
General Fund 5,443 5,488
Capital Receipts Reserve 3,656 3.327
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 5,032 2,500
Revenue Grants Unapplied Account 867 am
Other Earmarked Funds 10,750 13,426
TOTAL 25,748 25,042

Motes are provided within the Financial Statements to explain material changes.
Capital Investment

In order to enhance the services it provides, the Council has an ambitious Capital Investment
Programme representing around £122M over the next 10 years. This level of investment is dependent
on significant external funding being secured. These plans will be subject to review in the normal
course of business as part of the normal budgeting cycles, in respect of affordability, sustainability
and prudence. This is particularly important in the context of the high inflationary economic
environment. As part of this Capital Investment Programme, expenditure on capital projects during
the 2022/23 financial year included:

Capital Scheme £000

Vehicles, Plant, Equipment and Software 1,089
Leisure Centres Major works a7a
Bangor Waterfront Development 320 .
Play Parks 1,145 |
Town Centre Revitalisation 203
Other Minor Schemes BG63
Total 4,498

Details of how the Council has funded its capital expenditure are set out in Note 13 (page 95).
Information on capital commitments relating to capital projects is set out in Note 14 (page 95) and
information in respect of funding which Council has received in advance is detailed in Note 24 (page
109).

p | 11
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Mon-Financial

Each year the Council publishes its Annual Performance Report. This self-assessment is to account
for its improvement activity for that year and review performance against the Improvement Objectives
set in the preceding year. The report reflects on the performance on the delivery of our agreed
Improvement Objectives and supporting actions for the year in review.

Additionally, the Council monitors performance of its key indicators against each of its Service delivery
plans with RAG performance for each corporate theme for the year being:

1. Frospenty

2. Envianman

o
"]
Ll

Outlook

The outlook for the Council remains uncertain due to the high inflationary economic environment. In
the short-term Council continues to have concemn high utility costs reducing household disposable
income among rate payers and, therefore, the loss of service income.

There are pressures within salaries budgets (because of nationally agreed pay settlements being
driven by increases to the National Living Wage and the increase in employer pension contributions),
the ongoing revenue costs associated with new capital investment projects and recruitment difficulties
due to a shortage of talent.

In addition to the £5M of savings required during the last budgeting process Council noted the
pressures arising from general inflation, energy inflation, pay inflation and risks in respect of income
loss at Bangor Aurora Aguatic and Leisure Complex due to the need for major repairs. In order to
mitigate these pressures Council has agreed strategic workstreams in connection with waste
management, outsourcing options and organisational structure review, These will be taken forward
as part of the Strategic Transformation and Efficiency Programme.

It is estimated that the non-domestic rate base has contracted by 4% since the inception of the
Council and continues to provide a challenge in terms of income generation. Council will be seeking
ways (o address this with the establishment of a Tax Base Development Fund. In the shorter-term,
there is concern regarding the potential rate debt write-offs resulting from the pandemic.

As capital investment increases in line with the Capital Investment Plan, the Council may see its
borrowing increase from the current level of £63M to around £76M in 2026 and £110M by 2033. This
will be kept under review at each future budgeting cycle and as projects progress.

Basis of preparation

Information is considered material “if omitting it or misstating it could influence decisions that users
make on the basis of financial information.” Consequently, items of differing magnitude may both be
regarded as material given their differing contexts.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as required by the Code.
Over the past number of years Council worked to increase the level of its General Fund and
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Earmarked Fund balances in order to improve its financial resilience, As a percentage of gross
revenue expenditure have doubled from 9% in 2017/18 to 18% in 2022/23 and therefore consider
that in addition to the statutory going concern requirement the Council has secured its financial
situation in practice.

Material and Unusual ltems

As noted above the movement in pension liabilities is material movement although treated in line with
normal practices. Further information is set out in note 22 on page 103.

During the financial year, following public consultation, Council took the decision at its January 2023
meeting to withdraw its planning application for the Kinnegar to Donaghadee Greenway capital
project, due to the significant changes requested by the community. In addition, Council agreed to
establish a working group to explore accessibility, maintenance and connectivity issues in connection
with the Morth Down Coastal Path, This decision has resulted in £184,000 of expenditure previously
capitalised as an asset under construction to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a Council shall make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A Council shall designate an officer
of the Council as its Chief Financial Officer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the
supervision of its Chief Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland)
2015, the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer on 26 June 2023.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8(2) of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of
Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer is required to:

. observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom;

. follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis; and

M make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
. keep proper accounting records which are up-to-date; and

. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Governance Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Scope of Responsibility

Ards and Morth Down Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of
governance (including the system of internal control) to allow it to act in the public interest by:

« enabling its business to be conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards; and

= ensuring that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act (Morthern Ireland) 2014 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of its functions.

In discharging these overall responsibilities, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement, in accordance with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
(2016). This statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it engages with, leads and gives
account to its communities. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonahle level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, (o evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
econamically.

This governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the financial statements., During the year however, a number of changes

were made to the directorate structure and consequently the Committee structure. These came into
effect on 1 January 2023, however these have not materially affected governance arrangements.

The Governance Framewaork

This section describes the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council's
governance arrangements.
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1. Arrangements for reviewing the Council's vision and its implications for the

Council's governance arrangements

Council's vision within its Corporate Plan Towards 2024 mirrors the vision of the Community
Plan. In 2017, the Council and its partners published the area’s first community plan - the 'Big
Plan' — which sets out a vision for the Borough.

“Ards and Morth Down is a vibrant, connected, healthy, safe and prosperous place to be".

The vision is supported by five outcomes that are also mirrored in the Council's Corporate Plan.
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Ards and Morth Down's Community Plan is known as ‘the Big Plan'. It has been developed
following extensive engagement with the citizens of Ards and MNorth Down using ‘The Big
Conversation’ initiative to identify the long-term vision they would like to see achieved over the
next 15 years. This engagement mechanism will continue to be used to consult with people on
how implementing the Big Plan will improve the delivery of all public services. The Big Plan
provides a commitment from 15 strategic partners covering a range of issues including
transport, housing, envirenment, policing and health. The Big Plan and its implementation were
reviewed and the Big Plan Part Il | Our Big Priorities was published 5 years after the publication
of the Big Plan. A year's extension to a legally required review was provided due to resources
being diverted to support communities dealing with COVID-19. The five outcomes from the Big
Plan are now supported by 10 priorities. A Big Conversation Panel was used to confirm the most
important issues for residents are recognised by the 10 priorities.

The Big Plan gives the context for the Corporate Plan (available on the Council website here)
and the Council's first Local Development Plan, which is still being prepared.

Each of the Council's Services have agreed and published Service Plans against which they
will report to their Standing Committee. Each Plan is aligned to the Council's Corporate
objectives and monitoring of performance is managed through the Council's Performance
Reporting software. The system tracks a wide range of Key Performance Indicators on a
guarterty and annual basis and reports progress on a RAG (Red Amber Green) basis, providing
visibility of same to the Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service.

The Council's Corporate Services Committee has responsibility for overseeing the performance
management process and agreeing the Council's statutory Performance Improvement Plan

Back to Agenda
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(PIP) for Council approval. The Council's Audit Commiltee receives reporns on PIP performance,
ensuring that progress in each of the key areas is carefully monitored. The PIP is a mechanism
to identify key interventions to better achieve the outcomes set out in the Council's Corporate
Plan. It also fulfils the Council’s statutory obligations as set out in the Local Government Act
(Morthern Ireland) 2014,

Arrangements for identifying and communicating the Council's vision of its
purpose and intended outcomes for citizens and service users

The Council will deliver against the six People-focused priorities specified in its Corporate Plan
Towards 2024, which are aligned with the Community Plan outcomes. Each year Council
Services identify in their Service Plans improvement actions that are driven by:

« Priorities identified in the Corporate Plan are
based on input from Elected Members, officers
and wider consultation; b

= Feedback from ratepayers, residents and
stakeholders  arising from the  “Big
Conversation” community planning
engagement project and Conversation Panel

surveys;

« Feedback from residents via the biannual
residents survey;

* Qutput from workshops involving the Corporate
Leadership Team and Heads of Service Team;
and

« A review of Service Plans.

The Performance Improvement Plan is subject to, and informed by, public consultation, also
imvalving Statutory and Community Planning partners, our Consultative Panel on Equality and
Good Relations; Equality Scheme Consultees; a range of hard-to-reach groups, and the
Chambers of Trade for our principal towns.

At the end of the financial year, we will publish an assessment of the Council's performance.

Arrangements for measuring the quality of services, for ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the Council's objectives and for ensuring that they
represent the best use of resources

Individual Council Services monitor their performance on a quarterly basis to ensure that they
maintain customer satisfaction levels. The Council has in place performance reporting software
which links key performance indicators (KPls) via Service Plans to the Council's overall
objectives and shows progress against same,

The Council is subject to audit by the Local Government Auditor, within the Northern Ireland
Audit Office. The scope of auditors’ work covers not only the audit of the Council's Financial
Statements, but also aspects of corporate governance, arrangements (0 secure the economic,
efficient and effective use of resources and an audit and assessment of the Council's PIP. The
Local Government Auditor publishes an annual report on the results of both the financial audit
and improvement audit which are published on the Council's website.
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The Council has established a Performance Improvement Unit with responsibility for developing
and implementing effective performance governance arrangements in addition to supporting

projects and activities aimed at improving the better use of resources to achieve agreed
outcomes.

The Council has committed to undertaking a formal survey of residents every two years to gain
an insight into satisfaction levels with the organisation and the services we deliver. The
information gathered is shared across all service areas and used to inform a number of

performance improvement measures including our annual service plans, performance
improvement plan and financial statements.

Qur last survey was completed in summer 2021 with a smaller than usual sample (while

remaining statistically significant) given that many services had been significantly restricted
during 2020/21.

It is encouraging to note that 82% of residents report satisfaction with the Council. The
comparative figure for all Great Britain Councils in June 2021 was 68%.

«  Areas for improvement (over which Council has direct control) include enhancing
opportunities for consultation and tackling environmental issues at a local level e.g.
addressing dog fouling and littering.

+  Residents identified health and wellbeing (47%) to be the most important corporate
priority followed by jobs and the economy (21%).

«  T2% rated their most recent contact with the Council as either ‘excellent’ or ‘good’, with

the same percentage considering that the Council keeps residents informed about the
services and benefits it provides.

+  68% were satisfied with the level of engagement the Council offers local residents.

*  T71% rated the reputation of the Council as either excellent or good.

4. Arrangements for defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the
Council, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and
protocols for effective communication

As a statutory body, the Council performs a range of functions that are provided for in legislation.
The Council takes overall responsibility for discharging these functions, with its performance
delegated either to a Committee or an Officer. The committee structure is:
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Each Committee has a defined Terms of Reference, documenting its roles and responsibilities
including determining policy in its own area within the remit delegated from the Council.

The Terms of Reference of each Committee are periodically reviewed. The latest version was
agreed during December 2022 to reflect the change of the Regeneration and Development
Committee to become the Place and Prosperity Committee. There are also a number of
established sub-committees and working groups invaolving Elected Members, which report to
the relevant Committees.

During the pandemic legislation was enacted to allow council meetings to take place remotely,
via video conferencing technology. This legislation has been extended on 24 September 2023.

Section 41 of the Local Government Act (Morthern Ireland) 2014 requires that Councils'
Standing Orders must make provision requiring reconsideration of a decision if 15% of the
members present make a requisition to the Chief Executive on either or both of the following
grounds:

+« That a decision was not arrived at after a proper consideration of the relevant facts and
issues; and

« That the decision would disproportionately affect adversely any section of the
inhahitants of the district.

This is commonly known as the ‘call-in” procedure and is addressed by Standing Order 22 within
the Council's Standing Orders.

In line with section 2 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, the Council has
prepared its constitution. This has been published on the Council's website here.

The purpose of the constitution is to:
= enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community, in partnership with
citizens, businesses and other organisations;
« support the active involvement of citizens in the process of Council decision-making;
= help Councillors represent their constituents more effectively;
= enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;
= create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to public account;

« ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they were directly
involved:;

« ensure that those responsible for decision-making are clearly identifiable to local people
and that the decision-makers explain the reasons for decisions; and

« provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the community.

A Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), consisting of the Chief Executive and Directors meets to
make strategic decisions, while a Heads of Service Team (HoST) is responsible for Operational
delivery and informing strategic work.

A Corporate Project Portfolio Board (CPPB) provides oversight of the range of capital and
strategic projects undertaken by the Council, while a Corporate Project Assurance Group
(CPAG) provides additional objective scrutiny of projects on the corporate portfolio. In addition,
the Council has established a Strategic Transtormation and Efficiency Programme EBoard to
oversee a programme of modernisation within the organisation and is establishing an Estates
Development Programme Board to identify and deliver strategic development projects in respect
of the Council estate.
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The Council has also set up a Corporate Health and Safety Committee that meets quarterly,
comprising Directors, Heads of Service, Service Unit Managers, the Council's Health and Safety
Officer and Trade Unions representatives to ensure the streamlining of Health and Safety
throughout all Council functions and to report on incidents. In addition, each Directorate has its
own Health and Safety Committee,

The Council is also a member of the arc21 Waste Management Joint Committee along with five
other Northern Ireland Councils. The Joint Committee has delegated authority to deal with
financial matters up to £250,000 and all other decisions are subject to ratification by the
constituent Councils,

The responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer are set out in the Local Government (Accounts
& Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2015. Council has designated the Chief Executive as
its Chief Financial Officer. In addition, the responsibilities of Officers including, senior
management are enshrined in job descriptions. In addition, the Council has a scheme to
delegate decision making to Service Unit Manager level.

Arrangements for developing, communicating and embedding codes of
conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for members and staff

The Council has a wide range of policies and procedures, which are subject to on-going review
and include the standards of behaviour expected from all employees. The Council has adopted
the Local Government Staff Commission’s Code of Conduct. All policies and procedures are
communicated to employees through induction, other on-going training initiatives and are
published on the intranet. Specifically, these policies include an Anti-fraud, Bribery and
Corruption Policy (including a fraud response plan) and a Declarations of Interest Policy (which
requires all employees at or above salary scale point 23 to declare actual or potential conflicts
of interest).

Line managers have received training from the Council's Human Resources Service in relation
to these HR policies. Council has an "Employee Behaviour Charter’. Training has been provided
to embed these positive behaviours into the Council's culture and the behaviours are illustrated
with examples of good practice in the Council's fortnightly staff newsletter. The Council is
continuing to embed its Learning and Development Strategy and the Pride and Performance
Appraisal Conversation initiative with every employee.
The Northern Ireland These conversations align with the Corporate Values,
Local Government which are part of the Corporate Plan.

Code of Conduct
for Councillors

The Morthern lreland Local Government Code of
Conduct for Councillors came into effect 28 May 2014.
Councillors have received training in respect of this
statutory code of conduct. They have also completed
declarations of interest, which are published on the

o, e Council website and which they have a legal obligation
e Z to keep up to date.

6. Arrangements for reviewing the effectiveness of the decision-making
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framework, including delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships
and robustness of data quality

The Council is committed to the effective delivery of services for the benefit of residents and

users alike. A scheme of delegation to officers with clearly defined parameters and reporting
arrangements was agreed by Council in 2019 and i1s kept under periodic review.
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The Council is involved in a number of strategic partnerships, including the Queen's Parade
redevelopment, Belfast Region City Deal, the 11-Council NI Enterprise Support Service, the
Labour Market Partnership and the Strategic Community Planning Partnership, all of which have
project boards or committees in place to provide an appropriate governance structure. In
addition, arc21 operates within the framework of a legally binding collaborative agreement
between all of its councils. A Joint Committee is arc21's decision making forum and is made up
of 18 elected members (three from each of its six partner councils).

The Council, the Depanment for Communities and Bangor Marine Ltd have entered into a
Development Agreement for the redevelopment of the Queen’'s Parade project. This is
progressing well with an estimate construction start date of quarter four of this year. This project
is overseen by a Project Board which meets regularity. Regular updates on the progress of the
project are reported to the Council via the Place and Prosperity Committes.

. Arrangements for reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying
and managing risks and demonstrating clear accountability

Risk Managerment

In line with the Council's Risk Strategy, a Corporate Risk Register is maintained to ensure that
key areas of risk that may affect delivery of gur Corporate Plan are identified. To ensure a
proactive approach to risk management, all corporate risks have assigned mitigations
(comprising current controls and additional mitigation measures required). As a live document,
itis subject to change as required. The Register is reviewed by the Corporate Leadership Team
(CLT) and Heads of Service Team (HoST) on a quarterly basis to ensure that it is kept up to
date and to streamline consideration of and mitigation against risk throughout the organisation
and is reported to the Audit Committee twice yearly.

A second level of risk recording is performed through Service Risk Registers, these identify
Service specific strategic and operational risks and are incorporated into Service
plans. Periodic reviews are included within each Service's management processes. In addition,
hiannually, each Service completes an internal governance Assurance Statement to provide
assurance that the internal standard procedures, risk management and [/ or control
arrangements are in place. Within this statement any failure of controls or significant risks
causing concern and requiring mitigation is identified.

The Council last revised its Risk Strateqgy in October 2021. This is currently being aligned to the
Corporate Plan Toward 2024 to ensure that the Council is best equipped to deliver its future
ambitions. Management training is currently underway and will be completed in the new
financial year.

Dala Management

The Council aims at all times to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
and the Data Protection Act 2018. The new data protection legislation, which came into force
in May 2018, triggered the recruitment of a Data Protection Officer, whose role is defined in the
legislation. Since then, data security and information management systems have been
reviewed, privacy notices updated, and a significant programme of training has been delivered
to management and employees, including a new comprehensive E-learning module, Business
Technology has introduced additional measures to ensure data security, A new CCTV and
Surveillance Equipment Policy has been developed to ensure all aspects of video and audio
recordings are managed securely. This was ratified in October 2022.
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The Council plans to introduce an electronic document and records management system,
based on a Microsoft GDPR compliant platform, to continue to improve data management
practices, data security and general compliance. A scoping exercise was carried out in 2019/20
but no further action took place pending budget cover. This action is still on the agenda for
consideration as a transformation project, but timescales are not yet confirmed.

A project on scanning the title deeds associated with land belonging to the Council took place
in January to May 2022. This has resulted in a comprehensive set of documents being available
to all officers that require them in a timely fashion and ensures that the records are safe for the
future.

A project on scanning all the files associated with Public Rights of Way took place in 2022, This
has resulted in a comprehensive set of documents being available to all officers that require
them in a timely fashion and ensures that the records are safe for the future. It also means that
solicitors who need to access files are given digital access for a timebound period.

Conflicts of Interest

Each member of the Council is obliged to declare any interests, These declarations are
published on the Council website. Declarations of interests is a standard item on each Council
or committee meeting agenda, with standing orders requiring that a member leaves the meeting
for the duration of the item in which they have made a declaration.

The Council has also approved a Declaration of Interests policy for employees, which requires
all staff at or above a certain level to declare all interests which may result in a conflict of interest.
In addition, all staff must receive written permission to have employment with another employer.

Arrangements to ensure effective accountability

Transparency

The Council is committed to conducting its
business openly and transparently. It aims
to publish information in a timely and
accurate manner and in accordance with its
publication scheme. All meetings of the
Council and its Committees are open for
members of the public to attend. Meetings
are also live streamed via the Council's

YouTube channel. Minutes and audio e s [ Rosst poun |
recordings of past meetings are available on oaw P
the Council's website al: Committee and e ———

Council Meetings January to _June 2023 s s R ———

Seprares LY G dres b LR Goysramse 8 Lanvelang

Ards and North Down Borough Council. Up Fund m

The Council has a very proactive social media presence, which it uses to
both share information and to engage with citizens by answering
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Reporting

Each of the Council's 18 services report on performance on a quarterly basis to their respective
Standing Committee. Progress against the annual Performance Improvement Plan is reported
to Audit Committee. An annual report is published to highlight progress against the PIF and
achievement against the Corporate Plan outcomes.

Financial statements are prepared in line with the requirements of the Local Government
Finance Act (Morthern Ireland) 2011 and published annually. Articles 17 and 18 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2015 give members of the public access to the books of accounts
as part of the audit process.

Performance Management

The Council has a wide range of policies and strategies to assist with the management of
performance. Key documents include the Corporate Plan, Performance Improvement Plan and
Service Plans each with outcomes and indicators. All staff operate within the Pride in
Performance framework (PnP). During 2022 it was agreed that the PnP conversations could be
paused whilst a new process was designed.

The Council has developed and adopted a performance
framework called PERFORM, as illustrated in the diagram
below. This is in recognition that performance of the
organisation is driven by a number of factors such as
effective planning, the engagement of staff, allocation of
resources, aligned policies and systems, effective utilisation
of these in providing services, relating to our residents,
customers and partners and our ability to manage resulting
performance. This model provides a framework to guide our
approach on each of these elements and to promote
alignment of related approaches.

Financial Management

The Council's Finance Service operates under the direction of suitably qualified and
experienced accountancy professionals and within the policies and procedures framework
brought forward from legacy organisations.

The Council substantially funds its services by setting a property tax for both domestic and non-
domestic properties (the district rates). It sets these rates in the context of a Medium-Term
Financial Strategy, including principles to guide decision making and a five-year Medium-Term
Financial Plan which integrates the on-going costs of service delivery and the financial impact
of the capital investment programme, taking into account external economic and legislative
factors. All budgets are allocated through Directors to Heads of Service and on to Service Unit
Managers for accountability purposes and are reported both on corporate bases to
management and the Corporate Services Committee,

Aurdit

External audit services are provided by the Local Government Auditor (LGA), a member of staff
in the Morthern Ireland Audit Office (NIAO), appointed to this role by the Department for
Communities with the consent of the Comptroller and Auditor General. They are assisted in this
role by other NIAO staff. The LGA has contracted the performance of both the financial and
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improvement audits to a private sector organisation, whilst retaining responsibility for the
statutory respansibility for certifying the financial statements.

In addition, the auditor can undertake value for money studies and public interest investigations,
as Necessary,

With respect to the financial audit, a Report To Those Charged With Governance is reported to
the Council’s Audit Committee detailing such matters as audit findings, recommendations, and
misstatements which the Local Government Auditor considers appropriate to bring to the
attention of management. In addition, an annual audit letter is prepared for Council and
published on the Council website.

The Improvement Audit is also carried out by the Local Government Auditor. This includes
reviews of the previous year's activities and the adequacy of current year's plan. The findings
from this Audit and Assessment Report together with the Certificate of Compliance are
published on the Council website.

9. Arrangements ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption
arrangements are developed and maintained.

The Council's Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy states that it is committed to creating an
environment that:

« Minimises the risk of fraud, bribery or corruption;

« Promotes its early detection;

« Safeguards whistle-blowers; and

« Effectively investigates and recovers, where appropriate, any financial loss suffered.

To this end, the Council relies on measures such as the Morthern Ireland Local Government
Code of Conduct for Councillors, Code of Conduct for Local Government Services, employment
references, policies and procedures (including manager review, segregation of duties,
reconciliations, performance reporting and registers of interests) to embed a counter-fraud
culture.

Opportunity is also taken to use the Council's intranet to communicate anti-fraud messages
including the publication of MIAO fraud risk guides. In addition to highlighting these issues at
periodic Service Unit Manager forums and Heads of Service meetings.

All occurrences of fraud are reported to the Morthern Ireland Audit Office and Department for
Communities as a matter of course and to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

10. Arrangements ensuring effective management of change and transformation

The Council is committed to delivering high quality services for the residents of the Borough and
those who use its senvices.

To this effect the Council has in place a Corporate Plan to provide an overarching context and
framework for its service delivery. Flowing from this each of the Council’s 18 services prepare
a service plan to guide the core business and to identify and progress service improvements.
These service plans then form the basis of the annual Performance Improvement Plan, which
Is both publicly consulted on and reported against.

The Council has an approved Capital Project Management Handbook which sels out the
organisation’s structured capital project management approach, This is in parallel to the
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development of a corporate transformation programme (0 ensure corporate alignment of
initiatives, increase the pace of delivery and provide a robust governance framework for
oversight purposes. As part of its Strategic Transformation and Performance Service Council
has a Performance Improvement Unit to provide support to other services as they seek to
transform.

The Council acknowledges in  its
Organisational Development strategy that
the successful delivery of the Council's
vision requires a workforce that is truly
motivated and working together for a
common and meaningful purpose. To this
end the Council has retained Investors in
People Silver accreditation to stimulate
continued progress in the nine pillars 1o
improve performance:

DRDA RIS AT I
AMBITHON

As part of this strategy, each vyear
management commit to a number of key
actions in its People Plan.

The Council views partnership working a key
to delivering change for the benefit of
residents. The Big Plan formally establishes
collaboration among the partners to deliver
the Community Plan. This forum is being used to provide greater cross-working on estates
issues across community planning partners. In addition, officers from across the Council
maintain regular contact with colleagues in other organisations to address areas of common
concern, and as a result participates in several inter-council procurement exercises, The Big
Conversation Panel was used to gather the views of residents to develop the Big Plan and has
been used to gather feedback from residents to inform decisions taken by community planning
partnerships. This information is shared across all community planning partners to improve local
Services.

11.Compliance of financial management arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) in Local Government (2016)

The Chief Executive has been designated by the Council as its Chief Financial Officer. As a
result, the Council complies with this statement with the exception of Principle 5. The Council
does not comply with this principle because local regulations in Morthern Ireland do not require
the CFO to be professionally qualified accountant nor for the role to be separated from that of
the Chief Executive. However, the Council's governance arrangements deliver the same impact
as the CFO is supported by a suitably qualified and expernenced Director and qualified staff
within the Finance Service to ensure that decisions made by Council are based on sound
technical knowledge and understanding.

12. Arrangements for ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
internal policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

Regulatory compliance is a responsibility of all members of Corporate Leadership Team (CLT)
and Heads of Service Team (HoST) and is meonitored at service level to ensure that all relevant
laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures are adhered to. To support this, meetings
of the Council and its Committees are conducted in accordance with a set of agreed Standing
Orders. It also has a range of policies arrived at following policy development procedures.
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To ensure that legislative compliance is embedded for all activities, reports to Council require
relevant legislation to be quoted. All major expenditure proposals are subject to review by CLT
before being passed to Council and legal advice is sought where appropriate and reported to
Council. In addition, all Directors, Heads of Service and Service Unit Managers are required to
sign off Interim and Annual Assurance statements which provide a chain of assurance to the
Chief Executive with regard to management of risks, control failings, incidents of fraud and
whistleblowing and to declare interests outside work which may give rise to conflicts of interest.

13. Arrangements for ensuring assurance processes conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit
(2010) and where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact.

The Council outsources its internal audit service and ensures conformity to the CIPFA. statement
in its tender requirements which require appropriately qualified and experienced staff. In
addition, its approved Internal Audit Charter;

+ Sels out how audit work will be carried out, based on the risk analysis and evidence;
+« Sels out how audit work will be resourced; and

« Defines roles and responsibilities and explicitly grants access to management and Audit
Committee. It is standard practice at committee meetings that both internal and external
auditors have opportunity to address the committee in the absence of management.

14. Arrangements for undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as
identified in CIPFA's Audit Committees - Practical Guidance for Local
Authorities

The Council has in place an Audit Committee whose overall purpose and objective is to assist
the Council in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee, which meets at least
four times each year, has responsibility for reviewing:

The system of internal control and management of risks;

« The financial reporting process;

« The audit process;

« Progress in respect of the Performance Improvement Plan;

» Council’s processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations; and

« Council's processes for monitoring compliance with its own Standing Orders, policies
and procedures.

In performing its duties, the Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining effective working
relationships with the Council as a whole, with management and with the internal and external
auditors. The committee has 11 members including one independent external representative.

15. Arrangements for whistleblowing and for receiving and investigating complaints
from the public

The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. It expects its employees, agency workers and contractors who have sernous
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concerns about anything improper that is happening in the Council, to come forward and raise
those Concerns.

The Council has a whistleblowing policy in place to ensure that employees who raise concems
receive a response and are informed about how their concerns are being dealt with. Training
was launched on the Council’s e-learning platform during the 2022/23 year.

The handling of complaints is set out in the Council's Complaints Procedure, a copy of which is
published on the Council's website. This has under gone a review and the Council agreed to
adopt the new NIPSO Model Complaints Handling Procedure in March 2023. This will be rolled
out in early 2023/24.

16. Arrangements for identifying the development needs of members and senior
officers in relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

Mew Members, whether joining Council after an election or co-option, receive induction training
to ensure that they are fully aware of all key issues, including an overview of each Council
Directorate, operation of the Committee system and Standing Orders and an overview of local
government finance. Members of the Planning Committee have received specific training in
respect of this new statutory role. The Council has been awarded Elected Member Charter
accreditation. Members were given the opportunity to identify their training needs and to develop
their own training plans. Members also attended courses and conferences as required during
the course of the year. Council will seek Charter Plus accreditation in due course,

The development needs of senior officers are addressed through the Pride in Performance
Initiative and the Organisational Development Strategy.

17.Arrangements for establishing clear channels of communication with all
sections of the community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation

The Council is committed to establishing and maintaining strong lines of communication with all
sections of the local community. All Council and Committee meetings are open to the press
and public. In addition, the minutes and an audio recording are published on the Council website
(except where a meeting or part thereof is held ‘in committea’).

Meetings are also live streamed for the press and public on the Council's YouTube channel.

There is awareness across all Directorates that different communication channels need o be
employed to ensure maximum impact, however digital platforms are particularly useful and cost
effective for Council. Corporately, the Council uses Facebook, Twilter, Instagram and Linkedin
platforms, which have a combined following of over 43,000 people. Channels are updated on
a daily basis. Service-specific channels operate in tourism, ants and culture, and leisure with a
combined following of 33,000 people.

The Council's Gov.uk website is the main shop window for all its digital communication, Any
onling search for Ards and Morth Down will direct to this site. Council’s main social media
channels all refer people back to this website to delver on calls to actions. Council ezines are
also linked back to the site. Annual traffic to the site is in excess of 1.2M and growing year on
year, User salisfaction with the site is high (averaging at 91% in the last two resident surveys).
However, the site was created in 2015 using a content management system that has since been
upgraded and the site will be redeveloped in the 2023/24 financial year to ensure it continues
to be fit-for purpose.

The Council distributed its annual corporate publication, the Borough Magazine, to all
households and businesses in the Borough (approx. 80,000 addresses) at the end of March
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2023. This publication provides an overview of Council business across all Directorates and
each page is themed to enable residents to easily access information of specific interest to
them. A contact number for further information or links to the Council website are provided for
readers to access more information if required. The "Your Opinion Matters' section in each
edition invites comments, questions and ideas for service improvements from residents, via
postcard or email. These are processed by the Performance Improvement Unit and allocated
to the relevant service area for action. There is no budget provision in the 2023/24 year to
continue to produce a hard copy publication, but efforts will be made to make an online version
available as widely as possible.

The Council employs two officers dedicated to external communications (one for traditional
channels and one for digital channels). They produce regular content for both local and regional
media and undertake the daily management of the Council's website and social media
channels,

All Council Services consult on their various strategies and policies in the process of normal
business and to comply with the Council’s various statutory duties. This year a number of
internal services carried out internal customer surveys to assist with refining plans.

18.Arrangements for enhancing the accountability for service delivery and
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effectiveness of other public service providers

The Big Plan for Ards and North Down (known as the Community Plan) is monitored and
reported on via a Strategic Community Planning Partnership. There are two parts to this:

+ Statement of Progress — The Department for Communities has produced guidance on how
progress against the Community Plan should be reported. Every two years a Statement of
Progress must be published to consider the impact service delivery is having on the people
of Ards and North Down. The whole-population based indicators in the Big Plan (linked to
the Programme for Government indicators) will be used to measure impact over time. The
second Statement of Progress was published in November 2021.

« Performance Update Report — The review of the Big Plan and its implementation has
resulted in the identification of 10 priorities that are now supported by issue specific
workstreams. Most workstreams are supported by an action plan and the activities within
this are reported to the Strategic Community Planning Partnership using Report Cards
developed wvia Outcomes Based Accountability methodology. An annual Performance
Update Report is provided to the Strategic Partnership and help make partnership members
collectively accountable for the impact all public services have on the people who live in
Ards and Morth Down.

The governance arrangements for community planning in Ards and Narth Down are managed via
a partnership agreement outlining the roles and responsibilities of those who deliver public
services across all tiers of the partnership — strategic and operational. This Partnership Agreement
was reviewed and updated in February 2022.

While 10 priorities were agreed by the Strategic Partnership prior to COVID-19, these were further
reviewed using the Big Conversation Panel and via feedback from a Community Support Steering
Group, to ensure their relevance in a post-COVID 19 world, The Big Plan Part Il | Our Big Priarities
i5 published on the Council website The Big Plan for Ards and North Down | Ards and North Down

Borough Council,
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19. Arrangements for reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial
instructions, a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes and
manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and
controls required to manage risks

Meetings of the Council and its Committees are conducted in accordance with a set of agreed
Standing Orders. Any changes to these documents require formal approval by the Council.

The Standing Orders set out the formal mechanisms by which the Council regulates the conduct
of its meetings and are subject to regular review and update in response to the changing
environment and the needs of the Council. The Standing Orders have been reviewed and
amended as and when required since 2015. The latest review was approved in December 2021.

During the pandemic legislation was enacted to allow council meetings to take place remaotely,
via video conferencing technology. This legislation has been to be extended on a number of
Occasions.

In addition, there is a range of human resource management, financial management,
procurement and project management policies and procedures in place, some of these are
carried forward from legacy organisations. The Council will keep its policies and procedures
under review to ensure that they provide sufficient and comprehensive coverage. The
Corporate Risk Register is subject to formal update and is reported to the Audit Committee at
least twice yearly, or more regularly if required.

Any suspension of Standing Orders requires approval by the Council by way of qualified
majority.

20.Arrangements in respect of partnerships and other joint working as identified
by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships.

The Council has responsibility to initiate, maintain, facilitate and participate in community
planning. The statutory partners have all agreed to a Partnership Agreement which commits
them to be active participants in the community planning process and to provide relevant staff
tor each of the workstreams. The agreement also sets out that all partners are equal and
provides rules of attendance at meetings and how decision should be made. The Partnership
Agreement was reviewed, updated and endorsed by the Strategic Partnership in February 2022.
Reports on the process and progress in relation to Community Planning are reported regularly
to the Council's Corporate Services Committee.

The Council also participates in arc21 Joint Committee along with five other councils in order to
discharge statutory responsibilities set out in its waste management plan. This joint committee
has been established as a body corporate and participating organisations have agreed to
Collaboration Agreement (Terms of Agreement), which includes a statement of principles.
Reports in respect of the activities of and decisions required by arc2l are brought to the
Council's Environment Committea.

General Power of Competence

The Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 gave councils a general power of compelence,
enabling them to take any action they consider appropriate provided the action was not prohibited by
any other legislation. Councils have been provided with the ability to act in their own interests and to
develop innovative approaches to addressing issues in their Borough. Under the Council's Standing
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Orders, a qualified majority shall be required on the exercise of the general power of competence in
accordance with Section 79 of the Act. This power was not used during the reporting period.

Review of effectiveness
A. Overview of the Review Process

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness
is informed by the work of the Council's CLT, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Auditl’s annual report, and
also by comments and recommendations made by the external auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external audits are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement to the control
environment and are practical solutions. Follow up reviews are also reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Governance Statement. In
preparing this statement, he has considered the governance framework and system of internal
controls in place. This review has been undertaken taking account of Guidance on the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2015 issued by the
Department of the Environment in November 2015. The Chief Executive leads the Council's
CLT to collectively have involvement in, and oversight of, the processes involved in maintaining
and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. In producing this statement, full
regard has been made to the register of interests for Councillors, the Corporate Risk Register,
Statements of Assurance provided by each Head of Service and Director to the Chief Executive
for year ended 31 March 2023.

The Council itself maintains overall control of the governance framework and has been involved,
for example, in appraving the implementation of the risk management policy and statement of
assurance processes, Primary responsibility for overseeing the governance process is the
responsibility of the Audit Committee as a standing committee of Council. The role of the Audit
Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council's internal and external auditors to
ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are addressed by CLTon a
timely basis.

In considering this Annual Governance Statement, the Audit Committee has considered the
review of the governance framework and system of internal controls prepared by the Chief
Executive.

B. Internal Audit

The Council's Internal Audit service is provided under contract by Deloitte Ireland LLP. Internal
Audit provides an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
system of internal control. Internal Audit reports any deficiencies in internal control to the Chief
Executive and Directors whose responsibility it is to consider any recommendations made and
to take necessary remedial action. The results of the work of Internal Audit are also reported
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis to ensure that continuous improvement takes place.
These reports include a half-yearly report on the progress being made to implement previous
agreed recommendations and an annual report from the Head of Internal Audit, providing
overall assurance on the systems of internal control in place.

The Council has both a four-year strategic audit plan and a one-year operational plan covering
the financial year under review, both of which have been agreed by the Audit Committee
following discussions with CLT and HoST. The internal audit approach is risk based and our
audit plan has been developed following an audit needs assessment as detailed in the Internal
Audit Strategy 2019-2023. The audit plan for 202223 was designed to cover the high-risk areas
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identified by this audit needs assessment. An executive summary of each Internal Audit report
has been reported to the Audit Committee, including recommendations, management
responses and an assignment to an appropriate manager for implementation by a specified
date.

During 2022/23, 11 internal audits were completed, nine of these were assurance
reviews and two were advisory in nature. Of the nine assurance reviews, eight received
satisfactory assurance and one received limited assurance. This final audit was in
respect of Cyber Security and there were 15 High Priority recommendations still open
from the previous advisory review carried out in 2019, In addition, 26 medium priority
and 10 low priority recommendations are still open.

All Internal Audit recommendations have been accepted or accepted in principle by
management and each has been allocated to a responsible officer and given a
timescale for implementation.

For the period under review, Internal Audit has provided a satisfactory assurance on
the overall system of internal control. Whilst Internal Audit has identified the need for
certain improvements, there were no issues raised that are considered to represent a
significant governance issue.

The Council's internal audit contractor undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Internal Audit service in line with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards. This review was reported by exception to the Audit Committee and
proved satisfactory.

. Statements of Assurance

The Service Statements of Assurance have been reviewed and the following points noted:

General - Identification of Risk, Monitoring and Control measures

All Services have confirmed that they are satisfied that any risks identified have appropriate
internal controls and any further actions taken, or to be taken, to adequately mitigate or resolve
the risk have been identified.

The impact of COVID 19 has reduced with fewer reports of negative, or potentially negative,
impacts. Risk assessments and procedures being reviewed as Council services move forward
to a return to pre-COVID 19, or altered way of, working. COVID 19 remains a risk, (o be
considered alongside other potentially risks as part of the normal risk assessment process.
There is a renewed focus on staff training which could not be held during the pandemic.
Environmental Health continues to reprioritise service delivery due to the backlog of inspections
and business interventions in addition to the continued implementation of the Food Standards
Agency recovery plan. Parks and Cemeteries reported post-COVID 19 stress with interventions
planned to assist staff.

Section 1 - Strategic and Operational Risk Management
Services report appropriate controls are currently in place and have identified satisfactory
actions to review, monitor, control, mitigate and resolve issues, where appropriate.

Waste and Cleansing services reported that the previously notified significant financial ability
risk, if the bidding process for the Residual Waste Treatment project is collapsed by the chient
(arc2l), remains. The Planning permission refused by the Department for Infrastructure
Minister is now subject to judicial review. This has significant implications for the future of arc21,
in terms of delivering infrastructure for member councils,

Environmental Health Protection and Development service continues to work with funders and
other Councils to understand the impact of changes to regulation in relation to EU exit and the
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NI protocol. The implication for service delivery remains unknown as guidance on the Windsor
Agreement is still outstanding.

Section 2 - Internal Control

There are no key issues arising to cause significant concern or requiring immediate action.
Updates on Internal Audit recommendations are reported to Audit Committee on a half yearly
basis.

As part of the rate setting process for 2023/24 Council agreed to a major review of waste
management services, in order to identify how recycling rates can be increased and further
financial savings achieved. Waste and Cleansing service have reported that an initial review of
the Waste Management Plan will be completed, with a full review to be done once the new MI
Waste Strateqy by DAERA has been finalised and implemented.

Leisure service reported that staffing levels are a concern and that the impact of this on staff
welfare and service delivery is an ongoing issue.

Section 3 - Governance

Assets and Property Services have reported that there is an ongoing dispute over design and
workmanship at Aurora which is expected to be a lengthy legal process. The service has also
reported that the situation with a large contract existing for vehicle hire with a local company
which has not been subject to procurement processes is ongoing.

Strategic Transformation and Performance service has reported that an anonymous
whistleblowing allegation has been received relating to the procurement and management of a
minor external works and hired plant contract which is being investigated.

Waste and Cleansing reported that a noise complaint has been lodged regarding operations at
the North Read Depot, following the removal of trees and an earth bund by a developer, The
service is awaiting the outcome of Environmental Health monitoring reports to identify if
mitigation is required.

Planning have reported that the introduction of the new planning portal replacement resulted in
downtime and inability to accept planning applications which had an impact on fee income and
targets, this has been addressed since the introduction of the new portal.

Community and Culture service previoushy reported a COVID 19 grant claim error has
potentially been resolved and the service is awaiting the processing of the final claims, The
service has also reported that irregularities in the timekeeping of employees has been
discovered which is being investigated.

Regulatory Services reported a risk of significant reduction in building control income due to the
current economic uncertainty. In addition, there is the possibility of changes in how this service
is delivered depending on the outcomes of the Grenfell Report and Building Safety Review.

Leisure service reported that the preferred operating model for Community Centres and Halls
needs to be determined and planning put in place to ensure continuity of service provision.

Section 4 - Miscellaneous

Leisure service has highlighted the need for a decision on future operating models needs o be
made to provide certainty for staff. In addition, the budget setting process has meant that a
number of service issues need to be considered such as reduced opening hours and withdrawal
of services not funded.
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D. Corporate Risk Register

Within the register, management have identified significant residual risks (after current
mitigating actions) regarding;

« the Council's Local Development Plan (LDP) being found to be unsound due to
unavailability of a draft Belfast Metropolitan Transport Strategy (BMTP). The Council's
Head of Planning attends the BMTP project board and officers will continue to work
with Department for Infrastructure and Translink colleagues on LDP issues.

» Breach of Cyber Security. Damage to systems, or theft, leading to a failure to deliver
services, financial loss, legal action or regulatory action due to non-compliance with
infarmation management legislation (including GDPR and Data Protection Act 2018).
Improvements continue to be made to increase resilience and awareness. In response
to the internal audit review, mentioned above, a cyber security action plan to integrate
cyber security across the organisation is in progress.

« Data Breach Response & Recovery. Inadequate response (speed / statutory
compliance [/ inadequate controls / process [ risk mitigation & provision / reputation /
resourcing). Actions to be taken include the development of a critical incident policy
and procedure, establishment of working group to address cross-organisation issues,
development of a risk register, review of cyber systems and risks and also staff
training.

+ Lack of adequate and effective business continuity, disaster recovery and emergency
planning processes leading to inability of the Council to deliver on its core functions.

Emergency planning: ‘'Martyn's Law’, The legislation, still in draft, is part of the
government's response to the Manchester Arena  Inguiry Volume 1, which
recommended the introduction of legislation to improve the safety and security of public
venues. The legislation will place a requirement on those responsible for certain
venues to consider the threat from terrorism and implement appropriate and
proportionate mitigation measures to ensure that people are prepared, ready to
respond and know what to do in an attack. It is anticipated that better protection will
be delivered through enhanced security systems, staff training, and clearer processes.
The proposed obligations are tiered.

Business Continuity: Overarching Business Continuity plan and service Business
Impact Analysis (BIAs) outstanding. Whilst business continuity plans were developed
to limit service impacts during COVID 19 the plan and BlAs post-COVID 19 require
completion. As normal business operations progress with more reliance on digital
senvices for both information storage and service delivery, cyber securnity and the risk
of long term to total loss of information remains the highest risk to business continuity.

E. Fraud, Whistle Blowing and Data Protection

During the year there were no whistleblowing incidents nor reportable data protection
breaches. Three incidents were reported to the Northern Ireland Audit Office in relation to
potential frauds. These have been processed in line with normal procedures.

The Council has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of

the governance framework by the Chief Executive and plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system.
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Significant governance issues

There are no significant governance issues. Although there are a number of areas where ongoing
improvements can be made, these are not considered to be fundamental in nature,

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer Chair of Audit Committee
18 September 2023 18 September 2023
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Remuneration REFIEII"I
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Introduction

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2015 require larger local
government bodies to prepare a remuneration report as parn of the statement of accounts.

Allowance and Remuneration Arrangements

Councillors

Allowances are payable by Councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Morthern lreland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019, which came into operation on 1 October 2019.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2022 were issued
by the Department for Communities on 25 January 2023 (Circular LG 03/2023). Details of the
allowances paid to individual councillors are published on the Council's website.

Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line
with that determined by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives and National Joint
Council (NJC) for Local Government Services for Directors. Senior staff are those staff who are
members of the Corporate Leadership Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff
Commissions’ Code of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be
on merit and based on fair and open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-
ended.

Allowances Paid to Councillors

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances in 2022/23, under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Morthern Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 is set out in Table 1. This is audited information.

Independent Member — Audit Committee

Mr William McGonigal was the independent member of the Audit Committee until 30 June 2022. He
was succeeded by Mr Paul Cummings who commenced on 1 August 2022. The role is to help
promote the highest standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure the
accountability of public funds. A payment of £270 is paid per meeting o cover preparation and
attendance plus travel and expenses,
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Tahle 1: Total Allowances paid to Councillors and Independent Member (audited

information)

Allowance

Basic Allowance
Special Responsibility
Allowance

Chairperson / Mayor
Allowance

Vice Chairperson/ Deputy
Mayor Allowance

Mileage Allowance
Other Travel Allowance

Subsistence
Training, Courses/
Conferences Visits

Dependents' Carers
Allowance

Independent Member
Allowance and Expenses

TOTAL ALLOWANCES

2022123 2021122
Total Mumber of Total Number of
Allowances Councillors Allowances Councillors
£ receiving receiving
Allowance Allowance
600,778 45+
27,958 25
14,868 2
7,428 2
5,736 g
2,350 5
1,660 5
9,299 45
Bi0 =
670,887 662,487

* Dunng the 2022/23 financial year 45 different councillors were remunerated. Two councillors
succeeded in being elected to the Morthern Ireland Assembly and hence they automatically ceased
to be councillors. Two ather councillors resigned from the Council and were replaced in line with
legislation. One councillor passed away and was replaced in line with legislation.

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2022/23 are published on the Council's

website at Remuneration Report | Ards and North Down Borough Council
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The remuneration of senior employees covers the Corporate Leadership Team. The following table

provides details of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary) (audited information)

Officers 2022/23 2021/22
Salary Benefits Total Salary Benefits Total
(Full wyear inkind (Full wyear | in kind
equivalent (to equivalent (to
in brackets nearest in brackets | nearest
where £100) where £100)
applicable) applicable)
£'000 £'000 £'000
S Reid 120 -125 4 120 - 125
Chief Executive
G Bannister a0 - 95 4 a0 - 95
DWW
S Christie 80 -85 1 85-90
DFP/DCS (90 - 95) (90 - 95)
(left 28/02/2023)
D Lindsay 80 - 85 1 850 -85
DE
S McCullough 80 - 95 4 80 - 95
DRDP/DP
W Swanston 70 =75 1 T0-75
DODA (90 - 95) (90 - 95)
(left 31/12/2022)
A McCullough
DPr 20-25 - 20-25
(start 01/01/2023) (85 — 90) (85 — 90)
M Steele 15-20 - 15-20
DCS (90 - 95) (90 - 95)

(start 01/02/2023)

DCW - Director of Community and Wellbeing

DE - Director of Environment

OFF = Durector of Finance and Performance

DODA - Director of Organisational Development and Administration
DRDP - Director of Regeneration, Development and Planning

DP - Director of Place (from 0L/01/2023)

DPr - Director of Prosperity (from 01/01/2023)

DCS - Director of Corporate Services (from 01/02/2023)

Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid
member of the Corporate Leadership Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate Leadership Team in the

financial year 2022/23 was £120k - £125k. This was 4.93 times the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £25,227.
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Tahle 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Corporate
Leadership Team and the median remuneration of the Council's workforce (audited
information)

2022123 202122
£ E

Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the 120,000 — 125,000 120,000 - 125,000
Corporate Leadership Team

Median Total Remuneration 25227 22,129
Ratio 4.85 5.53

In 2022/23, no employees received remuneration more than the highest paid member of the
Corporate Leadership Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments (none paid) and benefits in kind (staff leisure
membership and health insurance both taxed at source).

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, taxable mileage payments and any gratia payments.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by
HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff (Audited Information)

The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per band
and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies for 2022/23 was Enil and this was the same
for the 2021/22 year.

Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Morthemn Ireland) (the Scheme) is a funded defined benefit
pension scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average
revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015, Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary”
basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for
each year of membership. Pension benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31
March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There
i5 no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009, Pension benefits
in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and
3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009,
At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion rate s £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension
given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011, The Scheme application is modified
to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued
pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 Apnl 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and
thereafter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to
1 April 2009, a member's contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration
{except for those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and
have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rates, determined by the
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whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member
contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities
in April each year in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands,
effective from 1 April 2022, were as set out in Table 5 below.

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Range Employee
Contribution Rate

£0 - £15,400
£15,401 - £23,700

£23,701 - £39,500
£39,501 - £48,000
£48,001 - £95,100

Maore than £95,100

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the triennial
valuation. A formal triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was carried out in
2020/21 and set employer contribution rates for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2020 as follows:

Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer
Contribution Rate

1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021

1 April 2021 - 31 March 2022

1 April 2022 — 31 March 2023

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June
2014 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of regulations are
effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued
significant benefits thus far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all
Councillors during 2022/23 were £115,024 (2021/22: £117,136).

The value of pension benefits of the maost senior management of the Council accrued during the year
was as follows:
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Tahle 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2022/23 (audited information)

Officers Accrued Pension  Real increasein CETV at J=3 a1 Real
at pension age as pension and 313123 PEMEFFEN increase
at 31/3/23 and related lump sum in CETV
related lump sum  at pension age
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
S Reid 60-65 and lump (2.5)-(5) and lump 1,270 (69)
Chief Executive sum 105-110 sum (10)-(12.5)
G Bannister 40-45 and lump 0—(2.5) and lump 776 (22)
DCW sum 60-65 sum (2.5)-(5)
S Christie 5-10 and lump sum  0-2.5 and lump 105 11
DFP nil sum nil
(left 28/02/2023)
D Lindsay 45-50 and lump 0—(2.5) and lump 865 (25)
DE sum 70-75 sum (5)-(7.5)
S McCullough 35-40 and lump 0—(2.5) and lump 671 (18)
DRDP sum 50-55 sum (2.5)-(5)
W Swanston 30-35 and lump 0—(2.5) and lump 639 (10}
DODA sum 35-40 sum (2.5)-(5)
(left 31/12/2022)
A McCullough 30-35 plus lump 0-2.5 plus lump 563 17
DPr sum 60-65 sum 0-2.5
(start
01/01/2023)
M Steele 0-5 and lump sum 0-2.5 and lump 3 1
DCs il sum nil
(start
01/02/2023)

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual
or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when
pension benefits are taken,
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The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does not include the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market
valuation factors for the start and end of the period. However, the real increase calculation uses
common actuarial factors at the start and end of the period so that it disregards the effect of any
changes in factors and focuses only on the increase that is funded by the employer.

Chief Executive
18 September 2023
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(&)

(b)

the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 on pages 1 to 119 has been
prepared in the form directed by the Department for Communities and under the accounting
policies set out on pages 53 to 73.

in my opinion the Statement of Accounts give a true and fair view of the income and
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of
the financial year ending 31 March 2023.

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
18 September 2023

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Audit Committee on 18 September 2023.

Chairman
18 September 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Ards and North Down
Borough Council

Opinion on financial statements

I have audited the financial statements of Ards and North Down Borough Council for
the year ended 31 March 2023 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005. The financial statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow
Statement, and the related notes including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting on the United Kingdom
supported by UK adopted international accounting standards.

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in
that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2022-23, of the financial position of Ards and North Down
Borough Council as at 31 March 2023 and its income and expenditure for the
yvear then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland) 2015 and the Department
for Communities’ directions issued thereunder.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
(UK). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My
staff and I are independent of Ards and North Down Borough Council in accordance
with the ethical requirements of the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard,
and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion. 26

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that Ards and North Down
Borough Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Ards and North Down Borough Council's ability to continue as a going
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concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Ards and North Down Borough Council is
adopted in consideration of the requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting, which require entities to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements where it anticipated that
the services which they provide will continue into the future.

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report
described in that report as having been audited, and my audit certificate and report.
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the
Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report,
I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to
report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard. 27

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared
in accordance with the Department for Communities’ directions made under
the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Morthern Ireland)
2015; and

« the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
31 March 2023 is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which I report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Ards and North Down Borough
Council and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, I have not identified
material misstatements in the Statement of Accounts.

[ have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if:

* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

- does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022-23;

- does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

- is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from
my audit; or
o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my
audit, or

+ [ issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government
{Northern Ireland) Order 2005; or

« [ designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005 any recommendation made to the Council; or

. I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the
Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005,

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s
Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

+ the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view;

= such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free form material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

. assessing the Ards and North Down Borough Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
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the going concern basis of accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates
that the services provided by Ards and North Down Borough Council will not continue
to be provided in the future.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit
Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error and to issue a certificate that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

I design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including
fraud.

My procedures included:

. obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable
to the Ards and North Down Borough Council through discussion with management
and application of extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws
and regulations I

« considered included the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005;

« making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Ards
and North Down Borough Council’s compliance with laws and regulations;

. making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with
governance as to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk
of material misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual,
suspected and alleged fraud and irregularity;

. completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Ards and
North Down Borough Council’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur. This included, but was not limited to, an
engagement director led engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular
areas, transaction streams and business practices that may be susceptible to
material misstatement due to fraud. As part of this discussion, I identified potential
for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition and posting of unusual journals;

. engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively
had the appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-
compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;
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. documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal
controls in place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations;

. designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial
statements in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures included, but were not limited to, reading board and committee minutes,
and agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation
and approvals as appropriate; and

. addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls
by: o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected
relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate
or unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in
determining accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the
normal course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Ards and North Down Borough Council
in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no
other purpose, as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local
Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies.

Certificate

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Ards and North Down Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

September 2023
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2023
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in
accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The
taxation position i1s shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement

in Reserves Statement,

Services Expenditure
Community & Wellbeing
HQ

Ermviranmental Haalth

Community & Culiure
Parks and Cemeteries

Leisure
Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing

Assets and Property
Services

Regulatory Services
Prosperity HD)
Economic Development
Planning

Tourism

Place HG

Regeneralion

Strategic Capital
Development

Corporate Services HQ
Internal Auwdit

Finance

Strategic Transformation
and Performance

HR & OD
Administration
Chief Execulive

Community Planmning

Communications and
Marketing
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2022123

Gross
Expenditure

£

268,320
3,123,328
3,703,229
7,389,364

11,450,195
446,915
20,046,454
11,581,128
3,407,362
37,991
3,448,683
2,497,519
2,017,200

342,971
1,280,632

396,002

314,827

52,319
1,236,758
2,246 386
1,283.850
5,158,104

422,858

220,654

842,251

Gross Income

£

{1,379)

(726,967)
(1,775,225)
(530,135)
(3,215,129)

(1,232 835)
(396,700)

{2,133,109)

(1.030,428)
(949,261)
(197,998)

(30,281)
(125,000)

(78]

1,362
(6,926)
(4,050)

(409,986)
(459)
(48,389)

Net

Expenditure ST

266,941
2,396,361
1,928,004
6,859,229
8,235,066

446,915

18,813,619
11,184,428
1,274,253
37,991
2,418,255
1,548,258
1,819,211

342,971
1,250,351

271,002

314,751

52,319
1,238,121
2,239,460
1,279,800
4,748,118

422,400

172,265

942,251

Gross

E

1,047,026
2,743,520
3,514,164
5,711,649

994,696

17,948,849

9,625,184

3,152,010

2,815,047

2,363,431

1,152 867

4,249,654

2021122

Gross Income

E
RESTATED

(125,013)
(611,445)
(1,206,005)
(457,928)
(2,183 495)
(1,965)
(1,113,652)
(248,032)

(2,049,455)

(533,819)

(1,007,463)

(4,139)

(S00)

(345,256)

Mt
Expenditure

£

922,013
2,132,075
2,308,159
5,253,721
5,338,504
992,731
16,835,197
8,377,152

1,102 555

038
963

936
5,870
1,118,854
2,039,796
1,151,967
3,904,298
364,397
195,116

895,986



Capital Financing
Year End Transactions
REFCLUS

Cost of Services on
Continuing Operations

Other Ciperating
Expenditure ! Income

Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure

Surplus/{Deficit) on
Discontinued Operations
Met

Operating
Expenditure
Taxation and Mon-Specific
Grant Income
Surplus/{Deficit) on the
Prowision of Services

Surplusi{Dehicit) an
revaluaton of nonf-currem
assels

Impairment losses on non-
current assets charged to
the Revaluation Reserve

Re-measurements of the
Net Defined Benefit Liability/
[Asgel)

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

ot

Iha  |ha

[[==] P

[

IR
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2021722

Gross

Expenditure Gross Income

(10,2832 734)

(130,437)

(10,414,171)
- (59.792,421)

. { 70,206, 5592)

2022123
Gross Met
Expendifure Gros Income Expenditure
£ £ £
77.278 77,278
GB8,210 688,210
84,080,798 (12,812 971) 71,267,828
(55,004) (55,004)
4,027,471 (623,011) 3,404,450
88,053,176 (12,435982) 74,617,194
- (62921,417) (62.921,417)
BEO53.176  (76,357.300)  (11,695,777)
20,121,496
(12,905)
57,650,000
77,758,591
66,062,814

Met
Expenditung

62,923,076

260,583

3,842,939

67,026,598
(58,792,421)

(7,234,177)

11,130,517

(455,000)

21,343,000

32,018,517

24,784,340
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Back to Agenda

The Statement shows the movement in the yvear on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into
'usable reserves’ (i.e, those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable
reserves’,. The Statement shows how the movemenis in year of the Council's reserves are broken down
between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepled accounting practices and the
statutory adjustment required o refurn 1o the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year, The Met
Increase/Decrease ling shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the vear following those

adjustments.

At 1 April 2022

Movement in resenves
during the year:

Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of
Services

Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding under
regulations

Met Increase /
(Decrease) before
transfers to Statutory
and Other Resernves

Transfers to/(from)
Statutory and Other
Reserves

Increase/(Decrease)
in Year

At 31 March 2023

50

General Other Fund  Capital Total Total Total

Fund Balances & Receipts Usahle Unusable Council
Summary Reserves Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserves

E E E E £ E

5487523 16,227,700 3,326,843 25,042,066 120,152,676 145,194,742
{11,695,777) - - (11,695777) - (11,695,777)
= = - = 77,758,591 77,758,591
(11,695,777) - - (11,695777) 77,758,991 66,062,814
8,981,976 3,091,365 329,563 12,402,904 (12,402,904) -
(2,713,801) 3,091,365 329,563 707,127 65,355,687 66,062,814
2,669,751  (2.669,751) . - - -
(44,050) 421,614 329,563 707,127 65,355,687 66,062,814
5443473 16,649,314 3,656,406 25,749,193 185508363 211,257,556
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Comparative Year

General Other Fund  Capital Total Total Total

Fund Balances &

Reserves

Receipts
Reserve

Usable
Reserves

Unusable
Reserves

Council
Reserves

At 1 April 2021

Movement in resenes
durnng the year:

£

4,527 365

£

13,831,634

£

1,619,304

£

19,978,303

E

100,432,099

£

120,410,402

Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of
sendices

(7,234,177)

(7,234,177)

(7.234,177)

Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

32,018,517

32,018,517

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

(7,234,177)

(7,234,177)

32,018,517

24,784,340

Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding under
requlations

10,808,047

(217,646)

1,707,539

12,297,940

(12,297,940)

Met Increase /
(Decrease) before
transfers to Statutory
and Other Resen/es

3,573,870

(217,646)

1,707,539

5,063,763

19,720,577

24,784,340

Transfers to/{from)
Slatutory and Other
Resernves

(2,613,712)

2,613,712

Increasel/(Decrease)
in Year

At 31 March 2022

5,487,523

2,396,066

16,227,700

1,707,539

3,326,843

5,063,763

25,042,066

19,720,577

120,152,676

24,784,340

145,194,742
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2023

Motes 2022123 2021122
E E
Fixed Assets 12 259,121,989 247 172,958
Long Term Debtors 16 43,391,011 530,642
LONG TERM ASSETS 302,513,000
Short Term Investments 17 -
Inventories 15 230,302
Short Term Debtors 16 9,226,547
Cash and Cash Equivalents 26 9,502,743 : 7
Assets Held for Sale 12f 175,000 100,000
CURRENT ASSETS 19,134,592
Bank Overdraft 26 1,305,328
Short Term Borrowing 18a 4,073,849
Short Term Creditors 19 5,589,540
Provisions 20 779,403
CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,748,120
Long Term Creditors 19 -
Provisions 20 524,140
Long Term Borrowing 18b 59,650,699
Other Long-Term Liabilities 22 (3,261,000) 921,
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 24 41,728,077 -
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 98,641,916
]
MET ASSETS 211,257,556 145194 742
USABLE RESERVES
Capital Receipts Reserve 27a 3,656,406
Capital Grants Linapplied Account 27b 5,032,113
Revenue Grants Unapplied Account 27c BG7.174
Earmarked Fund 27d 10,750,027 13,426,200
General Fund 27e 5,443,473 5487523
25,749,193
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustment Account 28a 81,022,280 81,580,592
Revaluation Reserve 28b 101,946,512 86,187,908
Pensions Reserve 28c 3,261,000 (46,921,000)
Accumulated Absences Account 28d (721,429) (694, 824)
185,508,363 120,152,676

NET WORTH
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

Cash Flow Statement
As at 31 March 2023

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital
(ie borrowing) to the Council.

Notes 2022123 2021122
E E

Met surplus /! (deficit) on the provision of e
EEWIEEE {-].1-5‘95-.???] [_. .L._Ili.j-‘ |_|
Adjustment for non-cash movements 26a 61,817,981
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus
or deficit on the provision of services that are  26a (798,742)
investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from Operating Activities 49,323 462
Met Cash flows from Investing Activities 26d (48,393,894) (804,114)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 26e (3.135,428) (6,170,265)
Net increase [/ (decrease) in cash and cash ad 474D
equivalents (2,205,860) (524,174)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of —

. . 0,927.4
the reporting pericd 26b 10,403,275 10,927,449
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 8.197.415 10,403,275

reporting pernod
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Ards and North Down Borough Council

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1A Accounting Policies
General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2023. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Requlations (Morthern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2022723, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2022/23 also requires disclosure in respect of;

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
1) Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular.

« Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

= Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet.

« Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

* [nterest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the
basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash
flows fixed or determined by the contract.

« Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

ii) Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

The Council has not acquired operations (or transferred operations under machinery of
government arrangements) during the financial year.
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The Council has not discontinued any operations (or transferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

iii) Provisions for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As both the legacy Councils have already completed the Pay & Grading review under Single
Status there is no longer a requirement to make a provision.

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature
in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. Any bank
overdrafts are shown within current liabilities on the balance sheet.

v) Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised
in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there
will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

vi) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
o the accounts.

vii) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday, flexi and time off in liew entitltements earned by employees but not taken
before the year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being
the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday entittements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which
the holiday absence occurs.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-Employment Benefits

Most employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government
Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme,

The liabilities of the Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits eamed to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected
earnings for current employees,

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet al their fair value:

guoted securities — current bid price;
unquoted securities — professional estimate;
property — market value;

unitised securities — current bid price.

® & & @

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components as follows:

1. Within the cost of services:

« current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
this year - allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
services for which the employees worked;
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= past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statements. The treatment of past service costs will depend on the
decisions of the Council about how they are allocated to service segments,

2. Within Financing Investment Income and Expenditure:

+« Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) — i.e. net interest expense
for the Council, the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the
beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

3. Within Other Comprehensive Income and Ex

= the return on plan assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the
Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income
derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on
the plan assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the
plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the
present value of the defined benefit obligation;

= actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions
Reserves as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

4, Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations:

» contributions by scheme participants - the increase in scheme liabiliies and assets
due to payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution
increases pension due to the employee in the future);

« contributions by the employer - the increase in scheme assels due to payments
into the scheme by the employer,

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are made to and from the Pensions
Reserve o remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees,

5, Discrelionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers (o make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award o any
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member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
pension fund.

The MNorthern Civil Service Pension Fund

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these henefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it was a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

viii) Ewvents After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

« those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
- the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;

« those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues her certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

ix) Exceptional tems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council’s financial performance.

¥) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e, in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
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other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

¥1) Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payahle for
the year according to the loan agreement.

However, the bonds issued by the Council in 2019720 are carried at a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal, and interest is charged at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate payable to bondholders, as a material amount of costs incurred in its
issue is being financed over the life of the stock.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss aver the term
that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable
when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assels

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.

There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

« amortised cosl
» fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
« fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (1.e. where the cash flows do not
take the form of a basic debt instrument).
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Financial Asseis Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carmrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument, For most of the
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.

However, the Council has made a number of loans 1o voluntary organisations at less than
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value
of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised
cost than the outstanding principal.

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving
to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the
financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance
is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost [or where relevant FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit
loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument
was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased
significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value, Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

« Instruments with quoted market prices - the market price;
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« other instruments with fixed and determinable payments = discounted cash flow
analysis;

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement date.

« Level 2 inputs = inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

« Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any
impairment losses).

xii) Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

xiii) Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in amrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

« the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

« the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed
by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor,

Maonies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satished, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
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Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

®v) Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available)
and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential
by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured
reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development
phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market.
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over
its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are
posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000, the Capital
Receipts Reserve,

xv) Inventories & Long-Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long Term revenue contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract

during the financial year,
¥wi) Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals andfor for capital

appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale,
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm's
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to
market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result
in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

¥wvi) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings,
the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee
Finance Leases:

Property, Plant and Equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The assel recognised is matched by
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

« a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease liability, and

« a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from
revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the
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General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.,

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor

Finance Leases:

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the camrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched
by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

« a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease asset (long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

« finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to be
treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. \Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment
of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future
rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is
used to wrte down the lease asset (debtor). At this point, the deferred capital receipts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of fixed
assels is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases:

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset 1s retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.q. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
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incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
iNnCome.

xviii) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease to fair value less costs o sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not
charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were classified
as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amaortisation or revaluations that would have been
recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the
date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as
Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Summary as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District Rates, as the cost of fixed
assels is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

xix) Owverheads and Support Services

Overheads and support services are no longer recharged to frontline services, as in previous
years. This follows changes to the CIPFA code and the ‘telling the story initiative where the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is now formatted in the same manner as
the Council reports internally.

¥x) Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential
to deliver fulure economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets over £5,000 are initially measured at cost, comprising:

+ the purchase price;

« any cosis attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

« the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council. In the latter case, where the asset
is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset
given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Mon-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carmried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

¢ infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated
historical cost;

¢ surplus assets — the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at the
highest and best use from a market participant's perspactive;

« all ather assels — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset
in its existing use (existing use value - ELUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
assel, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not maternially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to
the Revaluation Reserve 1o recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the
reversal of a loss previously charged (o a service,

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 Apnl 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account,
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Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may

be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall,

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

» where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains); and

« where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assels
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assels that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is charged on a straight-line basis on each main class of asset as follows:

« buildings and infrastructure assets are depreciated on their current value over the
estimated useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably qualified officer. Depending
on the type of building, installation or fitting the maximum useful life will be in the range
of 3 to 69 years.

« plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated on historic cost using a life of between
3 and 30 years.

« the Council applies a full year depreciation in the year of acguisition and no
depreciation in the year of disposal.

Componentisation
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the wtal cost of the item, the components are deprecialed separalely.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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xxi) Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture. They are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations and are held by the Council
in pursuit of its overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of heritage.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Council's general policies on impairment (see note xviii in this summary
of significant accounting policies). The Council will occasionally dispose of heritage assets
which have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such
items are accounted for in accordance with the Council's general provisions relating to the
disposal of property, plant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the
notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in accordance with statutory
accounting reguirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.

The Council's capitalisation limit for this class of asset is £5,000. Due to the fluctuating nature
in value of such assets, the Council will only derecognise assels once they fall below a value
of £2,500.

Heritage assets are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the
Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.

The Council's heritage assets can be classified into one of four main headings as follows:

Paintings and Drawings

It is within this category that most of the Council's heritage assets lie, the most significant of
which are paintings which are on display around Bangor Town Hall in corridors and offices.
The most important collections are those by James Humbert Craig and the gallery copies of
Old Masters by Edwin Long. There is also a good selection of renowned Irish artists including
William Conor, Maurice MacGonigal, Georgina Moutray Kyle and Charles Lamb.

Anefacts

Maost of these items are small pieces relating to North Down from prehistory to modern day.
Among the older artefacts is a fair example of a set of giant Irish elk antlers. However, the
most valuable item is the Victoria Cross and other medals awarded to Commander Hon.
Edward Barry Bingham for his role in the Battle of Jutland.

There are also some important artefacts relating to the families of Bangor Castle. Of interest
are the Raven Maps, a 17 century folio mapping the estate of Sir James Hamilton, Other
notable artefacts include the Bangor Bell, a bronze hand bell believed to be from the 8"
century and some Blair Mayne medals and pictures.

There are also some artefacts, mostly oriental, relating to Sir John Newell Jordan. The majority
of these pieces are porcelain or china but there are also scrolls, export chests and a few
bronze items including representations of Buddhas.

Furniture of historical interest

This not only encompasses chairs and tables but also large pieces such as cahbinets and
bookcases. There are a number of 17" century chairs originating from the Ward family. Of
particular note is a large Regency bookcase in mahogany.,
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Other Heritage Assels

Civic Regalia
This collection consists of the Mayor's Gold Chain of Office, Deputy Mayor's Gold Chain of
Office, Council Mace and other assorted items received or acquired by the Council as part of
its Civic role.,

Statues, War Memorials and Public Art

These encompass the Blair Mayne Statue (situated in Conway Square, Newtownards),
Gillespie’s Monument (situated in the Square, Comber), Cenotaph (situated in Court Square,
Newtownards), the Bangor Bell Public Art piece and some other less prominent pieces.

The entire collection is relatively static, acquisitions and donations are infrequent. Where they
do occur, acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised at
valuation. Valuations are ascertained by a suitably experienced expert in their respective
fields. However, there are some for which a nominal value is assigned as this would involve
a disproportionate cost in comparison to the benefits to the users of the Council’s financial
statements. This is because of the diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of
comparable values.

xxii) Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transter of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service If it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles
the obligation.

xxiii) Reserves and Funds

The Council sets aside specific amounts as funds for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assels,
financial instruments, accumulated absences and retirement benefits and do nol represent
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usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the
accounts.

xxiv) Charges to Revenue for Mon-Current Assets

Charges 0 revenue (e.g. services, support services and trading accounts) for non-cumrent
assels are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during
the year;

« depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off; and

« amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a
prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance, referred to as
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in the General Fund balance. Depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by MRP in the General Fund balance, by way
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

xxv) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

xxvi) Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown
net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

¥xvii)Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. inthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
b. inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markel participants
act in their economic best interest, When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the
council takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
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use the asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

« Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the authority can access at the measurement date;

¢« Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

+« Level 3 = unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

1B Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code
also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively unless
transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning
two financial years.

The standards introduced by the 2023/24 Code where disclosures are required in the 2022/23
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code
are:

i. IFRS 16 Leases ( but only for those local authorities that have decided to voluntarily
implement IFRS 16 in the 2023/24 year — deferred until 1* April 2024). Conrad Hall, CIPFA
LASAAC chair, said: "CIPFA LASSAC is of the view that IFRS 16 remains the best form of
reporting local authority leases and shares the Government's Financial Reporting Advisory
Board's (FRAB) objective of promoting excellence in financial reporting. The decision to
defer IFRS 16 is a pragmatic response due to the severe delays in the publication of audited
local authority financial statements in England. The decision should not be viewed as a
commentary on the usefulness of the information derived from the implementation of the
Standard.” FRABE advised CIPFA / LASAAC that it agreed with the deferral of IFRS 16
Leases until 1 April 2024 when Council will adopt in line with all Morthern Ireland councils.

ii. Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to 1AS 8) issued in February 2021

iii. Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments 1o 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
issued in February 2021.

.  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from Single Transaction (Amendments
o 1AS 12) issued in May 2021,

v. Updating a Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) issued in May
2020.

It is likely that though they lead to improved reporting that items i and i will not have a
significant impact on amounts anticipated to be reported in the financial statements. Item v
will only be applicable to local authorities with group accounts which isn't the case for Ards
and Morth Down Borough Council and it is likely there will be limited application of item v.
Hence the Council expects none of the above amendments to have a material impact on
information in the financial statements.
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1C  Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

For the 2022/23 financial year, the Council has not made any critical judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

1D  Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial yvear are as follows:

i) Insurance Claims
The Council has made a provision of £493,700 for the settlement of insurance claims, arising
from claims submitted to the Council under its self-insurance scheme for public and employee
liability. These claims are those that have been received since 1 April 2015 and those claims
still outstanding from the legacy North Down Borough Council, which were still outstanding at
31 March 2023.

This is a general provision, based on average settlement rates and represents an estimated
liability in respect of claims lodged but being strongly contested by the Council.

ii) Environmental Provision
The Council has made a provision of £50,000 that relates to the need for remedial works to
be undertaken to address environmental damage at a property in the Council area. This is
remediation work agreed as part of the seftlement to militate against future run-off of storm
water from Council land into the third party’s site.

iii) Pensions Liability
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. The
Council's pension provider's actuaries, Aon Hewitt, are engaged to provide the Council with
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate would result in a decrease of 1.80% in the
present value of the pension liability. Further information on the effects on the net pension
liability of changes in assumptions is disclosed in note 22e on pages 107 and 108,

iv) Holiday Pay Provision

Court judgments have established the law as reguiring employees to receve
acknowledgement of overtime payments as part of their holiday pay entitlerent calculations,
which the Council acknowledges. The Morthern Ireland Court of Appeal turned down an
appeal by the Police Service of Northern Ireland (PSNI) regarding the potential iability ansing
to that organisation in this regard. This decision was appealed to the Supreme Court. The
Council has a signed agreement with the recognised trade unions, however individual
employees will also be required to sign compromise agreements before receiving their
payment.
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However, as a consequence of a mediation process entered into between MIPSA and the
PSNI in relation to Agnew, NIPSA are no longer in a position, at this point, to enter into any
agreement which compromises the full extent of the law as determined by the Northern Ireland
Court of Appeal in Agnew. NIPSA's current position is therefore to pause any current
negotiations. The matter remains as a standing item on the Joint Forum agenda.
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2a) Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from
resources (government grants, service charges and district rates) by local authorities in comparison
with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes
between the council's directorates and services. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

2022123 2021522
Met Adjustments  MNet Elxpt:'rl“fllluru Met Adjustments | Net Expenditure
Expenditure between the n ) b in the
Chargeable to  Funding and = Comprehensive ixhp:[n :::lr: EEET:H ;:E Comprehensive
the General Accounting SN D el _EI g Income and
Fund basis Eipeushus to the Accounting Expenditune
Statement General Fund basis tainment
£ £ £ £
Community & 2 A0
wellbeing HO 235 468 31,473 266,941 33,300
Ervironmental
Health 1,945,368 450,993 2,396,361 454 666
Community &
Culture 1,560,036 367,968 1,928,004
Parks and
Cemeteries 4197505 2,661,724 6,859,229
Leisure 2,828,523 5,406,543 8,235,066
Ervironment HQ 413,900 33,015 446 915 992 731
Waste and : - o
Cleansing 16,288,904 2,524,715 18,813,619 16,835,198
Assets and e
Property Services 8,833,214 2,351,214 11,184,428 9,377,153
Regulatary 530,885 743368 1,274,253 [EEETTACTH 1,102,555
Saemvices
Prosperity HQ 33,385 4,606 37.991
Economic Dev 1065875 1,352,380 2,418,255 1,329,441 2,281,228
Planning 1,470,592 77,666 1,548,258 78,156 1,355,968
Tourism 1,625,447 193,764 1,819,211 315,667 1,488,628
Place HQ 310,788 32,183 342,971 335,892
Regeneration a4 270 296,081 1,250,351 1,169,039
Strategic Capital
Development 183,515 77,487 271,002
Corporate P
Services HO 279,112 35,639 314,751 278,901
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Internal Audit

Finance

Strategic
Transformation
and Performance

HR & QD
Administration

Chigf Executive

Commurity
Flanming
Communications
and Marketing

Capital Financing

Year End
Transactions

REFCLS

Met Cost of
Services

Other Income
and Expenditure

(Surplus) or
Deficit

Opening General
Fund

Surplusd (Deficit)
on General Fund
Balance in Year
Translers
(to)from Statutony
and Other
Resemes

Closing General
Fund

2022/23
Met Adjustments  Net Expenditure
Sl vty copma
the General  Accounting g‘mlm
Furnd basis Sxatement
£ £ E

52,319 - 52,319
1,060,838 177,283 1,238,121
1,504,994 334,466 2,239,460
1,118,950 160,850 1,279,800
4,146,600 601,518 4,748,118
384,632 37,768 422,400
140,408 31,857 172,265
796,788 145,463 842,251
5,899,241 (5,899,241) -
131,372 (54,004) 77,278

- 688,210 688,210
58,402,929 12 864,899 71,267,828
(55,689,128)  (3,882,923) (59,572,051)
2,713,801 8,981,976 11,695,777
5,487,523
(2,713,801)

2,669,751

5,443,473

Met
Expenditure
Chargeable

to the

General Fund

5,489,643

(£28,861)

51,399,632

(54,973,502)

(3,573.870)

2021722

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting
basis

£

165,734

285,451

169,834

314,58

1,458,209

11,523,444

10,808,047
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Staternent

£

1,118,854
2.038,796

1,151,967

62,923,076
(55,688,899)
7,234,177

4,527,365

3,573,870

(2,613,712)

5,487,523
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2h)

Mote to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
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This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable o the
General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Community & Wellbeing HQ
Environmental Health
Community & Culture

Parks and Cemeteries

Leisure

Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing

Assets and Property Services
Regulatory Services
Prosperity HQ

Economic Development
Planning

Tourism

Place HQ

Regeneration

Strategic Capital Development
Corporate Services HQ
Internal Audit

Finance

Strategic Transformation and Performance
HR & QD

Administration

Chief Execulive

Community Planning
Communications and Marketing
Capital Financing

Year End Transactions
REFCUS

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services

76

2022123
Adjustments  Met Change Other Total
for Capital for the Statutory
Purposes Pension Adjustments
Adjustments
E E E E
- 31,749 (276) 31473
5,766 425075 20,152 450,993
42 307 323,815 1,846 367,968
2,105,331 548,125 8,268 2,661,724
4,688,584 T27.453 (9,494) 5,406,543
- 31,772 1,243 33,015
Q44,698 1,548,435 31,582 2.524 715
1962974 376,867 11,373 2,351,214
383,551 366,012 (6,195) 743,368
- - 4,606 4,606
1,222 566 128,147 1,667 1,352,380
- 78,219 (553) 77,666
27,238 176,273 (9,747) 193,764
- 24,167 (1,984) 32,183
178,979 122,101 {4,999) 296,081
- 72,699 4,788 77,487
- 48,061 (12,422) 35,639
- 184, 114 (8,831) 177,283
203,818 132 829 (2,181) 334,466
- 159 809 1,041 160,850
60,610 548,355 (7.447) 601,518
- 37,360 408 37,768
- 34,571 (2,714) 31,857
12,997 125,992 6,474 145,463
(5,899,241) - (5,899,241)
(55,094) 1,000 - (54,094)
688,210 = = 688,210
6,573,294 6,265,000 26,605 12,864,899
(4,520,208) 1,203,000 (565,715) (3,882,923)
2,053,086 7,468,000 (539,110) 8,981,976
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Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis
RESTATED 2021/22

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Community & Wellbeing HQ
Environmental Health

Adjustments
for Capital
Purposes

£

5,045

Met Change
for the
Pension
Adjustments
£

35,194

449 162

Other
Statutory
Adjustments

£
(1,894)
459

Back to Agenda

E
33,300
454,666

Community & Culture

Parks and Cemeteries
Leisure

Environment HQ

Waste and Cleansing

Assets and Property Services
Reqgulatory Senices
Prospenty HQ

Economic Development
Planning

Tourism

Place HD

Regeneration

strateqgic Capital Development
Corporate Services HQ
Internal Audit

Finance

Strategic Transformation and Performance
HR & OD

Administration

Chief Executive

Community Planning
Communications and Marketing
Capital Financing

70,532
1,340,903
2,111,750
1,186,648
2,149 662

421,812

1,196,073

44 595

147,780

160,233

53,707

3,498
(5,489,643)

331,980
570,193
762,716
35,238
407,964
318,843
349,767

137,744
96,159
257,058
35,256
236,042
26,021
77,145

167,461
133,382
171,446
276,436

a7, 102

34,914
114,767

10,094
(26,880)
4,403
(3,365)
(30,075)
(16,289)
(16,371)
(4,3786)
(18,003)
14,014
1,419
(1,655)
1,211
6,890
(1,727)
1,836
(1,612)
11,147
(763)
3,713
3,881

412 616
1,884,216
2878869

31,873
2,564 537
2452 216

755,208

1,329,441
78,156
315,667
36,675
382 167
af, 232
84,035

165,734
295,451
169,834
641,290
56,339
38,627
122,146
(5,489,643)

Year End Transactions
REFCLUS
MNet Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Difference between General Fund
surplus or deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Surplus or Deficit on the Prowvision of
Services

305,583
1,458,209
5,166,387

(1,922,243)

3,244,144

8,000

6,421,000

1,229,000

7,650,000

{53343-!]

(22,154)

(86,087)

314,583
1,458,209
11,523,444

(715,397)

10,808,047
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Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments to General Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting
practices, this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the
services line and for:

i) Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets;

i) Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing
i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from financing
and investment income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting practices; and

i) Taxation and Mon-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure — Capital grants are adjusted for
income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which
conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions
or for which conditions were satisfied in the year,

Net Change for the Pension Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits
pension related expenditure and income:

« For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the
authority as permitted by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past
service costs;

« For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the CIES.

Other Statutory Differences

Other statutory adjustments for services represent the accrual of absences earned but not taken in
the year, e.g. annual leave entitiement carmed forward at 31 March 2023 along with TOIL and flexi
balances; along with the reversal of the same accrual from the previous year end.

There were no other differences between amounts debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable or receivable to be recognised under statute.
Other Non-5tatutory Adjustments

Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments which need
to be adjusted against the ‘Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis’

line to comply with the presentational requirements in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
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Segmental Income and Expenditure
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expenditure is analysed as follows:

Employee Benefits Expenses

Other Services Expenditure
Depreciation, Amartisation, Impairment
Interest Payments

Other Expenditure

Total Expenditure

Income is analysed as follows:

Fees, Charges and other service Income
Interest and Investment Income

District rate income

Government grants and Contributions
Other Income

Total Income

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of

Services

Mote

l%)

Mote

=
1]

[
g
2
=1

|3t

2022]23

E
33,405,723

38,835,658
11,839,418
4,027,471
(55,004)

88,053,176

2022123

£
(12,812,971)

(623,011)
(56,267,162)

(6,654,255)

(76,357,399)

(11,695,777)

Back to Agenda

2021/22

28272376

36,042 196

77,440,770

202122

£

(10,283,735)
(130,437)
(54,421,618)

(5,370,803)

(70,206,593)

(7,234,177)
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4 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

4a) Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but
required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund

Balance for the year:

Thates 2022123 2021/22
£ £

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current assets % 790,375
Revaluation  (increases)decreases  taken to  q2a/ . -
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services b 672,555 (964,648}
Depreciation charged in the year on non-current assets %‘r 10,376,488 0 856 877

11,839,418
MNet Revenue expenditure funded from capital under o
statute 688,210 1,458,209
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 26a 743,648 2 155 742
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property o |
and intangible assets 26a (798,742) (1,850,159)

633,116

Met charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with 1AS19 22b 12,194,000
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure 13 (296,141)
Capital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable and
Capital & Revenue Grants Receivable and Unapplied  a7p _ _
ir year ﬁ {3.653.314} (1,488 427)
Adjustments in relation to short-term compensated
ﬂb!S'EI'IEEE ¥ 28d 26,605
Statutory provision for the financing of Capital . L
Investment 13 (5,603,100) [5,320,804)
Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and e
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners 22b (4,726,000) (4,153,000)

(3,490,558) 152,016

Total Adjustments

8,981,976 10,808,047

3
1
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4b)  Net transfers (to)/from Reserves:

202223 202122

Earmarked Fund
Interest Sb (260,468) i)
(From) / to General Fund 2,930,219 )

2rd 2,669,751
]

5. The Cost of Services on continuing Operations
Sa) General Power of Competence

Prior to Local Government Reform on 1% April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was
limited under Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act (Morthern Ireland) 2011. This
section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act (Morthern Ireland) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Morthern Ireland) 2014, the Council has the
power to do anything that individuals generally may do. Councils have the power to do this
without charge. The power of competence is not limited to benefiting the area or its residents
nor is it limited by existing powers. The actual expenditure incurred during 2022/23 amounted
to ENil (2021/22: ENl).

5b) External Audit Fees
The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Statement of

Accounts, Performance Improvement Audit and other services provided by the Council's
external auditors.

2022/23 202122
E
Statement of Accounts Audit 50,200
Performance Improvement Audit 19,000
Under/(Over) accrual in previous years (5,500)
National Fraud Initiative -
63,700

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the appointed
auditor over and above those described above.

6. Operating and Finance Leases
Council as a Lessor

6a) Finance Leases (Council as a lessor)
The Council has a number of properties that are leased on a finance lease with terms ranging
from 99 to 10,000 years. As these are long leases they have been treated as disposals for
accounting purposes in the year of granting the lease. Any ground rent collected has been

recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and any residual
values are considered immatenal.
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6b) Operating Leases (Council as a lessor)

The Council, in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out
property under operating leases for the following purposes:

= for the provision of community services, advice services and meeting places for clubs and
societies;

« for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for
small local businesses; and

« for income generation.

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
current year amounts to £702,745 (2021/22: £361,882). Mo conlingent rents were recognised.

The lease terms are between 1 and 95 years. Future minimum lease income is set out below:

2022123 202122
£ E
Minimum lease rentals receivable:
No later than 1 year 343,713 275,240
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 330,401 246,756

Later than 5 years 1,438,144 1,485,265

2,112,258 2,007,261

All the assets leased out by the Council to third parties are Land & Buildings with carrying

values of.
2022123 2021/22
£ £
Cost 8,852,244 9,114,711
Tr‘.::;rill'lulated depreciation and impairments at 635,668
Depreciation charge for the year (635,668) (610,176)
Impairments/Revaluations 7,023,257 6,168,028

15,875,501 15,282,739

Council as a Lesseg

6c) Finance Leases (Council as a lessee)
The Council has no finance leases where the Council is a lessee,

G6d) Operating Leases (Council as a lessee)
The Council has acquired vehicles and safety cameras by entering into operating leases with
typical lives of 5 years for the vehicles, The Council also leases land on which some of its
waste management facilities are situated (these leases are for a period of 125 years but with

an option to break at the end of 20 years) and foreshore on which it has constructed a marina.
The Council leases other land with lease penods varying between 3 years and 35 years.
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The expendilure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement during the year in relation to these leases was:

2022123 2021122
Land & Vehicles, Land & Vehicles,
Buildings Plant & Buildings Plant &
Equipment Equipment
£ £ £
Minimum lease payments 346,275 12,481 316,9¢ 18,235
Contingent rentals =

Sub- lease payments receivable (137,949) - (92,200)

e

The future minimum lease payments due under operating leases in future years are set out
below:

2022123 2021122
Land & Vehicles, Land & Vehicles,
Buildings Plant & Buildings Plant &
Equipment Equipment

Minimum lease rentals payable: £ £ £ £
No later than 1 year 345,232 - 316,791
Later than 1 year and no later than
5 years 1,360,130 .
Later than 5 years 6,061,575 8 5.940,818

7,766,937 7,506,995

7. Employee Costs and Members® Allowances

7a) Employee Costs

2022123 2021122
£ £
Salaries and Wages 25,889,329 21,888,881
Employer Mational Insurance 2,493,096 2,007,304
Employer Pension costs 4,910,330 4,282,028

Apprenticeship Levy 112,968 94,163
33,405,723 WL Nrpky[

The agency costs incurred during the 2022/23 year amounted to £2,258,312 (2021/22
£2,013,501).

The Council's contribution rate to the NILGOSC scheme in 2022/23 is 19.5%. The Council's
cantribution rate for 2023/24 15 1984, At the last actuarial valuation, dated 31 March 2022, the
Fund’'s assets were £8,039.9M and the past service liabiliies (funding target) £9,226.7M,
corresponding to a surplus of £1,004.4M and a funding level of 111% (2019: 112%).
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7b) Average Number of Employees

The average number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees and the actual number of
employees employed by the Council, at 31 March, are set out below.

2022/23 202122

FTE FTE
Community & Wellbeing HQ 2.00 2.00
Environmental Health 45.01 45.6
Community & Culture 33.65 34.79
Leisure 96.87 3
Parks & Cemeteries 81.36
Environment HQ 2.00
Waste and Cleansing Services 234.08
Assets and Property Services 50.14
Regulatory Services 45.17

Regen, Dev & Planning HQ -
Finance & Performance HQ -

0D & Admin HQ )
Chief Executive 3.00
Community Planning 3.00
Communications and Marketing 13.39
Prosperity HQ 1.00
Economic Development 1163
Planning 39.51
Tourism 19.03
Place HQ 2.00
Regeneration 12.00
Strategic Capital Development 8.69
Corporate Services HQ 1.54
Finance 19.77
Strategic Transformation and Performance 14.00
HR & OD 16.41
Administration 45.82
Data Protection 1.00

802.07

Actual Numbers BCTSTEIN ST 1T S

Full-time numbers employed 654 648
Part-time numbers employed 256 191
910 839
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7c)  Senior Employees’ Remuneration

2022123 2021j22
Mumber Mumber
£70,001 to £80,000 1
£80,001 to £90,000 1 5
£90,001 to £100,000 3
£100,001 to £110,000 -
£110,001 to £120,000 -
£120,001 to £130,000 1
(5]

See Table 2 in the Remuneration Report on Page 37 for more detailed information regarding
Senior Employees’ Remuneration. Two Directors who commenced employment [ate in the
financial year are not included in the table above as their remuneration in the financial year
did not exceed £70,000 but they are included in the Remuneration Report Table 2.

7d) Members' Allowances
During the year Members' allowances, including Employer's costs, totalled £985,228. The
breakdown is as follows:

2022123
E
Basic Allowance 600,778
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 22,296
Special Responsibility Allowances 27,958
Dependents’ Carers Allowances -
Employer's Cosls 315,152
Mileage 5,736
Conferences & Courses -
Travel & Subsistence Costs 4,010
Miscellaneous 0,298
985,228 1,003,867

7e)  Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements
As a result of Reform of Local Government on 1 April 2015, 36 staff ransferred from Central
Government to the Council. These employees are members of the Northern Ireland Civil
(NICS) Service Pension Scheme.

The Morthern Ireland Cwil Service Pension arrangement 1S an unfunded multi-employer
defined benefit scheme, but the Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities. As a result of these arrangements the scheme is accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme in line with the Code. The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. This valuation i1s then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated
to reflect current conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the Department of
Finance Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2023.

For 2022/23, employers’ contributions of £400,738 were payable to the NICS pension
arrangements at one of three rates 28.7% (up to £28,898); 30.7% (£28,900 to £58,099) and
34.2% (£58,100 and over) of pensionable pay, based on salary bands. The scheme's Actuary
reviews employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation. A new
scheme funding valuation based on data as at 31 March 2016 was finalised by the Actuary
during 2019-20. This valuation was used 1o determine employer contribution rates for the
introduction of a new career average earning scheme from April 2015. The contribution rates
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are set (o meel the cost of the benefits accruing during 2021/22 to be paid when the member
retires, and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

Mo persons retired early on ill-health grounds and therefore no additional accrued pension
liabilities were incurred during the year.

8. Other Operating Income & Expenditure

Surplus or Deficit on Non-Current Assets 2022123 202122
E E

Proceeds from Sale (798,742) (1,850,159)

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 743,648 2,110,742

Tota (55.094)
I

The surplus on non-current assets represents a gain on the disposal of those assets.

9. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

9a Interest Payable and Similar Charges

2022123 202122
£ E
Government Loan Interest 2,199,475 2,315,939
Commercial Loan Interest 362,025 363,480
Loan Interest 2,961,500 2,679,418
[
9b Interest and Investment Income
2022123 2021122
£ £
Bank Interest (209,160) (8,188)
Employee Car Loan Interest {171) (280)
Morthern Ireland Housing Executive Loan interest Y.
roneiable E (34,084) (37,603)
Investment income on fund balances
Earmarked Fund (260,468)
Other investment Income & Expenditure 260,468

8¢ Pensions Interest Cost

2022123 2021122
£ £
Met interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1,203,000 | 1,229,000
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9d Income, Expenditure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

2022/23 202122
£ £
Income (including rental income) (77.627) (7
Expenditure 2,502

Net Income from investment properties (75,125)
Proceeds from sale -
Carrying amount of investment properties transferred -
{Surplus)/Deficit on sale of investment properties -
Change in fair value of investment properties (41,500) 11,500
Total (116,625) (19,409)

The net cost of financing and investing activities is due to the net effect of revaluations carried
out on all investment properties in 2022/23.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2022123 202122
E

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,561,500 2,679,419
Interest and Investment Income (243,415) (46,071)
Pensions Interest Cost 1,203,000 1,229,000
(Surplus) / deficit on trading operations - -
Other Investment Income (75,125) (30,909)
Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties _ (41,500) 11,500
Total 3,404,460 | 3,842,939

10. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

10a Revenue Grants

2022123 2021422
£ E
General (1,949,829) (1,871,999)

Other — COVID-19 Funding (184,218) (1,576,561)
(2,134,047)

10b Rewvenue Grants - Unapplied

2022/23 2021722
4 E

Government & Other Granis - Conditions met and 603,143 301,460

not applied in year




Back to Agenda

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

10c  Capital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied
2022123 2021/22

£ £
(1,397,109) (455,971)

The taxation and non-specific grant income includes the recognition of capital grants in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as required by the Code when the
conditions attached to those grants have been satisfied.

Government & Other Grants - Conditions met and
applied in year

10d Capital Grants - Unapplied

2022123 2021/22
£ £
Government & Other Grants - Conditions met and (3,123,009) (1,466,272)

not applied in year

10e District Rates

2022123
£
Current year (55,413,519)
Finalisation (853,643)
Totals (56,267,162)
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 2022123 2021122
£ £
District Rate Income (56,267,162) (54,421,618)
Revenue Grants (2,134,047) (3,448 560)
Capital Grants and Contributions (4,520,208) (1,922,243)
(62,921,417) (59,792,421)

11 Acquired and Discontinued - Operations

The Council has not acquired or discontinued any material operations.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

12c) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are made up of three different classes of asset:
= market trading rights which, due to their indefinite life, are not amortised;
*  public path creation agreements; and
= computer software which is depreciated over a useful life of 4 years.

The net book value of each class of intangible asset at 31 March is:

2022123 2021j22
£ £
Market Trading Rights 100,000 100,000
Public Path Creation Agreements 7 T
Computer Software 42 965 113,836

142,972 213,843

12d) Investment Properties

There were no additions to investment properties in year.

2022123 2021122
£ £
Rental Income from Investment Activilies 77,627
Direct Operating expenses _ (2,502)
Net gain/(loss) 75,125 75,909

12e) Heritage Assets

Artefacts  Paintings  Historical Other Total
& Furniture Heritage
Drawings Assels
£ £ £ £ £
Cost or Valuation:
At 1 April 2022 669,450 1,286,750 40,000 543,333 2,539,533
Additions/{Disposals) .
Derecognitions
Transfers
Revaluations to Revaluation Reserve
Revaluations 10 Surplus/Deficit on the
Prowision of Serices
At 31 March 2023 669,450 1,286,750 40,000 543,333 2,539,533

The Council's heritage assels are reported in the Balance Sheet at their most up to date insurance
valuation, which is based on valuations carried out by independent expens. The last valuation was

carried out during the financial year 2019/20. See note 1xxi for further details on the Council's policy
for hertage assets.
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12f) Assets held for Sale
Assets Held for Total

Sale Current
£ £

Cost or Valuation:

At 1 April 2022 100,000 100,000
Transferred from Non-Current Assets 175,000 175,000
Disposals {100,000) {100,000)
At 31 March 2023 175,000 175,000
Met Book Value at 31 March 2023 175,000 175,000
Net Book Value at 31 March 2022 100,000 100,000

During the year, Council disposed of a parcel of land at Belfast Road, Holywood by way of a
long term lease (999yrs). The premium paid was £100,000.

As at 31 March 2023, one asset was identified as meeting the criteria for an asset held for
sale. The disposal of this asset, land at Blair Mayne Road South in Mewtownards, completed
at the beginning of the 2023/24 financial year.

12h) Valuations

Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services
(LPS), in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applied to the
UK public sector and interpreted by the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting,
International Valuation Standards and the requirements of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Global Standards 2022. For the asset revaluations carried out this year, no
special assumptions were made. Please refer to Mote 1xx for further information on revaluation
and depreciation policies.

The revaluation results for land and buildings, including an analysis of the revaluations amounts
taken to the Revaluation Reserve and the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, are
detailed in note 12a.

12i) Impairments

An impairment review identified impairment losses of £803k relating solely to one asset, the
Blacklight Adventure Zone within the Ards Blair Mayne Wellbeing and Leisure Complex. This
facility has not been fully operational since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and
as a result of operational issues, including health and safety issues and changing trends within
the leisure industry, a more attractive new opportunity for the space arose, rendering the
existing fixtures and fittings redundant. The fixtures and fitings were sold at auction in March
2023 and netted proceeds of £44.5k.

94 p |



MNotes to the Financial Statements
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13. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

Back to Agenda

The Capital Financing Reguirement measures the Council's underlying need to borrow for a
capital purpose. The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the
table below (including the value of assets acquired under leases and PFI contracis), together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be
financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of
the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that is yet to be financed. The CFR

is analysed in the second part of this note.

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Capital Expenditure:
Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible Assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital

Under Statute (REFCUS)
Sources of Finance:
Capital receipts

Capital Grants & Other Contributions
Transfers from Earmarked Fund

Sums sets aside from Revenue:

Direct Revenue Contributions

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement
Explanation of Movements in Year

Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to

borrow

Assets acquired under leases

Assets acquired under PFIfPPP contracts
Increasef{decrease) in  Capital
Requirement

14. Future Capital Commitments

Financing

Notes 2022123
E
79,504,458
12a/b 4,450,670
12a/b 47,834
28a 688,210
27a (469,179)
10c/
27b (1,988,135)
28a (6422)
4,27 (296,141)
28a (5,603,100)
76,328,195
E
(3,176,263)
(3,176,263)

2021122
E

82,426,245

(142,620)

(2,162,042)

(168,839)
(5,320,804)
79,504,458

E

(2,921,787)

(2,921,787)

As at 31* March 2023, the Council has awarded contracts for capital schemes and other
purchases totalling £1.8m, as follows:

Gross Cost  Grant Aid MNet Cost
E E £
Capital works schemes 53,972 - 53,972
Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 1,746,344 - 1,746,344
Total 1,800,316 - 1,800,316
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15. Inventories

The stock of goods held at 31 March was:

Waste Transfer Station, Bangor - Fuel
Morth Road Depot, Newtownards - Fuel

North Road Depot, Newtownards — Stores
Morth Road Depot, Newtownards — Vehicle Parts
Morth Down Museum & Tourist Information Shops

Bangor Visitor Information Centre
Groomsport Visitor Information Centre
Newtownards Visitor Information Centre
Total

Back to Agenda

2022123 2021122
E E

27,526 30,

17,267 :
88,802
76,207
8,962

3,658

89

7,790

230,302

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in services at 31 March 2023 amounted to
£1,746 475,

16. Debtors

16a)

16b)

Long-Term Debtors
Government Departments
Capital Grants

NIHE lpans *

Total Long-Term Debtors

Short-Term Debtors

Government Depariments

Other Councils

Public Corporations & Trading Funds
Bodies External to General Government
MIHE loans !

Employee car loans

Revenue Grants

Capital Grants

Value Added Tax

Prepayments

Other

Trade receivables

Impairment loss - Trade receivables
Total Short-Term Debtors

Total Debtors

2022123 2021122
£ £

42,921,457 -
Il 539642
43,391,011 539,642

3,542,547 3,359,104

232,778 126,533
602 .
27,189 :
70,085 66,300

- 1,938
976,800 1,253,472
2,353,394 256,918
540,813 974,102
539,856 604,702
413,336 145,336
638,728 416,463
{109,581) (79,568)

9,226,547 7,425,300

52,617,558 7,964,942

! This debtor relates to the Northern Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE) debt brought about by the
local government re-organisation in 1972 with establishment of the NIHE. However, the loans relating
lo the assets transferred to the NIHE remain with the Council whilst interest and principal are received
annually from NIHE.
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17. Investments

17a) Long-Term Investments (more than 12 months)
There were no long-term investments in the reporting period.

17b) Short-Term Investments (more than 3 months)
There were no short-term investments in the reporting period.
The Council also administers deposits held on behalf of third parties, namely the Ards and North
Down Mayor's Charity Appeals, the Holywood District Nursing Society, and the Blair Mayne
Bursary. The total balances held as at the 31 March 2023 amount to £23,083.

18. Borrowings

18a) Short-Term Borrowing

2022/23 202122
£ £
Loans re-payable within one year 4,073,849 3,135,428
Finance Lease Principal =
Total Short-Term Borrowing 4,073,849 3,135,428
18b) Long-Term Borrowing
2022123 2021/22
E E
Between 1 and 2 years 2,775,070 4,073,849
Between 2 and 5 years 9,228,451 9.453,118
Between 5 and 10 years 16,204,366 15,330,647
In more than 10 years 31,382,812 34,868,933

Total Long-Term Borrowing

Total Borrowing

59,650,699 63,724,547

63,724,548

66,859,975

18c) Total Borrowing by Type
2022123 202122
E £
Annuity Repayment 23,314,738 25,427,179
Equal Instalments of Principle Borrowings 24,724,138 25,747,124
Maturity Repayment 15,685,672 15,685,672
Total Borrowing 63,724,548 66,859,975

Interest rates on Government Loans range between 2.24% and 9.875%. The average interest

rate on all long-term borrowings is 3.9%.
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19. Creditors
19a) Short-Term Creditors

Government Depanments

Other Councils

Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Bodies External to General Government
Remuneration due to employees
Accumulated Absences

Loan Interest Payable

Capital Creditors

Receipts in advance

Trade creditors

Other

Total Short Term Creditors

19b) Long-Term Creditors

Total Long-Term Creditors

Total Creditors

19¢c) Payment of Invoices

Back to Agenda

2022123 202122
£ £
616,455 765,664
(61,517) a
146,606 27
32,625 0,995
777,449 164,568
721,429 694,824
118,194 118,194
285,381 336,844
950,844 877,609

2,002,074 2,554,163

The Council has a target of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days. During the
2022/23 financial year the Council paid 18,094 invoices totalling £45,318,004.

Invoices Paid

Within 30 calendar days
Within 10 working days
Outside the 30-day target

Average days to pay
Median days to pay

2022123
No. %
17.468 7%
14,027 T8%
626 3%
14.55

13




Back to Agenda

MNotes to the Financial Statements
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20. Provisions

Uy Taar At 1 April ';f;'.‘:;:l" Utiised  Unused 31
2022 during year during year Reversals 2023
£ £ £ £ £

Insurance 423,900 380,165 (308,675) (1,690) 493,700
Environmental 85,005 - - (45,005) 50,000
Legal 30,440 . - . 30,440
Other 681,100 48,303 - - 729,403
1,230,445 428,468  (308,675)  (46,695) 1,303,543
Current Provisions 776,105 48,303 - (45,005) 779,403
Long Term Provisions 454,340 380,165  (308,675) (1,690) 524,140
1,230,445 428,468  (308,675)  (46,695) 1,303,543

Comparative Year:

Insurance
Environmental
Legal

Cther

Current Provisions

Long Term Provisions

Insurance Provision

At 1 April
2021

Ladi
Lud

[
L
oo

Lol —
e =1
=

2 kad
[

-
=

Increase in
provision
during year
£

Utilised
during year

£
(168,871)

(168,871)

(168,871)
(168,871)

Unused
Reversals

E

(36,696)

(35,696)

At 31
March
2022
E
423,900
85,005
30,440
GE1,100
1,230,445

776,105
454,340
1,230,445

The Council operates a self-insurance scheme for public and employee liahility insurance and
has a number of claims which require to be settled. A provision at 31 March 2023 has been
made on the basis of Council’s experience of settlement rates over recent years.

Environmental Provision

This provision relates to the need for remedial works to be undertaken to address environmental
damage at a property in the Council area. This remediation work was agreed as part of the
settlement to militate against future run-off of storm water from Council land into a third party's
site.

Legal Provision

This provision relates to legal fees in relation to ongoing legal cases and potential contractual
obligations.
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Other

Court judgments have established the law as requiring employees to receive
acknowledgement of overtime payments as part of their holiday pay entitlement
calculations, which the Council acknowledges. The Northern Ireland Court of Appeal turned
down an appeal by the Police Service of Northern Ireland (PSNI) regarding the potential
iability arising to that organisation in this regard. This decision was appealed to the
Supreme Court. The Council has a signed agreement with the recognised trade unions,
however individual employees will also be required to sign compromise agreements before
receiving their payment.

However, as a consequence of a mediation process entered into between NIPSA and the
PSNI in relation to Agnew, NIPSA is no longer in a position, at this point, to enter into any
agreement which compromises the full extent of the law as determined by the Northern
Ireland Court of Appeal in Agnew. NIPSA’s current position is therefore to pause any
current negotiations. The matter remains as a standing item on the Joint Forum agenda.

21. Financial Instruments

The Council has no matenal exposure to any of the risk types identified below in its dealings
with financial instruments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to the Council's customers. Authorised institutions for investments under the Council’s
Treasury Policy are assessed for financial strength and risk exposure. The provision for bad
and doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by debtors and
as such, there is no additional estimated exposure to default and inability to collect.

Liguidity Risk

The Council's net operating costs are funded through district rates and government grants.
Capital expenditure is largely financed by borrowing from the Government Loans Fund. The
Council is not therefore exposed to significant liquidity risk. The analysis of financial liabilities

is included in notes 18 and 19. All trade and other payables are due for payment within one
year.

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Council finances capital expenditure in the longer term through fixed rate borrowings in ling
its Treasury Management Strategy Statement and its Medium-Term Financial Plan. The Council
takes out short-term loans to benefit from the very low interest rates available. This strategy is
carried out with advice from the Council's treasury advisors and reviewed at the end of every
term to mimimise risk. In addition, Council has a limit of 30% of borrowing to be short-term in
nature.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus
has no material exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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Employee Car Loans

Back to Agenda

The Council makes loans for car purchases to employees in the Council who are in posts that
require them to drive regularly on the Council’s business. Currently there are no employees

who have lpoans which is reflected in Note 16,

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets as at 31 March 2023
Non-Current
Investments Debtors
£ ]
Fair Value through
profit or loss
Amortised cost .
Fair Value through
other comprehensive
income - designated
equity instruments
Fair Value through
other comprehensive =
ncome - other

Current
Investments Debtors
£ E

9,500,000 G368, 728

Total

10,138,728

Total Financial
Aszets
Mon-Financial Assels

9,500,000 638,728

10,138,728

Total -

Financial Assets as at 31 March 2022
Mon-Current
Investments Debtors
E £

Fair Yalue through
profit or loss

Amortised cost

Faur Value through
ather comprehensive
meome - designated
eguity instruments
Fair Yalue through
other comprehensive
income - other

Total Financial
Assets
Mon-Financial Assels
Total

9,500,000 638,728

Current
Investments Debtors
£ £

9,000,000 416,463

9,000,000 416,463

416,463

9,000,000

10,138,728

Total

£

9,416 463

9,416,463
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Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2023

Back to Agenda

Mon-Current Current Total
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors

£ £ £ £ £
Fair Value through )
profit or loss
Amortised cost 59,650,699 4,073,849 2,002,074 65,726,622
e L nacial 59,650,699 4,073,849 2,002,074 65,726,622
Mon-financial )
liabilities
Total 59,650,699 4,073,849 2,002,074 65,726,622

Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Fair Value through
prafit or loss

Amortized cost
Total financial
liabilities
Mon-hinancial
habilities

Borrowings

Mon-Current
Creditors

£ E

63,724,547

63,724,547

63,724,547

Cu
Bormowings

E

3,135,428
3,135,428

3,135,428

rrent
Creditors

E

2,554,163

2,554,163

2,554,163

69,414,138

69,414,138

69,414,138

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not Measured at Fair
Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are Required).

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table above) all other
financial liabilities and financial assets held by the authority are classified as loans and
receivables and long-term debtors and creditors and are carried in the Balance Sheet at
amortised cost. The fair values calculated are as follows.

31 March 2023
: : Carrying
Financial Assets | .
Liabilities amount Fair value
E E
Financial liabilities
held at amortised 63,724,548 58 242,169
cost
Financial assets
held at amortised 8,500,000 8,509,862

cost

102

31 March 2022

Carrying

Ao

£

66,859,975

9,000,000

t Fair value

£

73,230,483

8,999,596
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22. Retirement Benefits
22a) Participation in the Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the Council offers
retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire,
the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund
administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee
(commonly known as NILGOSC). This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's
liabilities with investment assets.

22b) Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits — Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing
Operations when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually
paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Council is required to make against District rates is based on the cash
payable in the year, and the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the adjustments
between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year:

2022123 2021/22
Met cost of services: E E
Current service cost 10,990,000 10,565,000

Past service cost/{gain) 1,000 9,000
(Gains)/Losses on setllements and curtailments - -
Met operating expenditure;
Met Interest on the net defined liability (asset) 1,203,000 1,229,000

Total Post-Employment Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

12,194,000 EEEER:TERI

Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made for retirement
benefits in accordance with 145 19 and the Code
Actual amount charged against the general
fund balance for pensions in the year:
Employers' contributions payable to scheme 4,726,000 4,153,000

Met Adjustment to the General Fund (7,468,000) (7,650,000)

The service cost figures include an allowance for administration expenses of £0.119m or 1.08%
of current service cost,

(12,194,000) EEER:IEX)
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22¢)

104

Re-measurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Liability gains/{losses) due to change in assumptions

Actuarial gainsf{losses) due to changes in demographic
assumptions

Liability experience gains/(losses) arising in the year
Actuarial Gains/{Losses) on plan assets
Other

Total Gains/(Losses) recognised in
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Other

Aszsets and Liabilities in relation to Retirement Benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme
liabilities:

Balance as at 1 April

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by members

Re-measurement (gains) and losses:

Actuarial gainsflosses arising on liabilities from changes
in financial assumptions

Actuarial gainsflosses arising from demographic
changes

Actuarial gainsflosses arsing on  liabilities  from
experience

Other

Past Service Cosls [ (gains)
Losses/(gains) on curtailments
Liabilities extinguished on setllements
Estimated unfunded benefits paid
Estimated benefits paid

Balance as at 31 March

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme
assets:

Balance as at 1 April

Interest Income

Contributions by members

Contributions by employer

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits
Re-measurement gains/({losses)

Assets distributed on settlements

Unfunded benefits paid

Benefits paid

Balance as at 31 March

2022/23
E

93,262,000
(949,000)

(13,506,000)
(21,157,000)

27,650,000

2022123
E
228,776,000
10,890,000
6,132,000
1,508,000

(93,262,000)
949,000

13,506,000

(71,000)
(4,891,000

163,638,000 L RELRL

2022/23
£
181,855,000
4,929,000
1,508,000
4,655,000
71,000
(21,157.000)

(71,000)
(4,891,000)

166,899,000 LSRN

Back to Agenda

202122
£

15,186,000

2,315,000
(525,000)
3,367,000

(73,000)
(4,181,000)

3,367,000

(73,000)
(4,181,000)
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The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected
returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective
markets. The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a loss of £16,228,000 (2021722
gain of £7,027,000).

Fair Value of Plan Assets: 2022123 2021/22

E £
Equity investments 68,920,287 Rk
Bonds 38,720,568 47,100,445
Froperty 17,524,395 EREERERLL
Cash 9,847,041 EEEEFERALY

Other 31,877,709 29,824 220

166,899,000 ETER: LRI

The above asset values are at bid value as required by 1AS 19. The bid values were provided by
NILGOSC, the administering authority. The amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for
propernty occupied by the Council was £nil.

The Council's share of the Net Pension Liability (included

in the Balance Sheet): 2022123 2021122

£
Fair Value of Employer Assets 166,899,000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (162,836,000)
Pension asset/{liability) of Funded Scheme 4,063,000 (46,031,000)
Present Value of Unfunded defined benefit obligation (802,000) (890,000)
::Elti gﬁ:ﬁﬂ{uahlhm arising from the defined benefit 3,261,000 (46,921,000)
Amount in the Balance sheet:
Liabilities (163,638,000) EEE:RrRei)]
Assets 166,899,000 181 855,000

Net Asset/(Liability) 3,261,000

22d) Scheme History

Analysis of scheme assets and liabilities 2022123
E
Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 166,899,000
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (163,638,000} (228, ]
Surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme 3,261,000
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and 2022/23 202122
Expenditure: £ £
Actuarial gains/{losses) 78,807,000 76,000

Expected Return on Plan Assets (21,157,000) 3,367,000

Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

27,650,000 21,343,000

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses 62,471,000 4,821,000

History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and (losses) on assets (21,157,000)
Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities (13,506,000)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay
retirement benefits. The total assets of £166,899,000 has a substantial impact on the net worth
of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a net asset of £3,261,000.

The Council has a net pension asset at the accounting date which is reflected in the reduction of
employer contributions to 19% for the next three years (23/24 to 25/26).

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 March 2024:

31/03/2024 31/03/2024

£ % of pay
Projected current cost 5,512,000 22.2
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liahility (asset) _ (265,000) -1.1
5,247,000 21.1

Allowance for administration expenses included in Current Service Cost £124,000 and estimated
pensionable payroll over the period £24,872,000.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Pension Fund by the Council in the year to 31 March 2024 is £5,284,350.

History of experience gains and losses

The actuarial gainsflosses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2022/23 can be
analysed into the following categories, measure as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31
March 2023.

2022123 2021/22
% %

BS

Experience Gains and (losses) on Assets (12.68) 1.
0.2

Experience gains and (losses) on Liabilities 8.25
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22e) Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund liabilities have been assessed by Aon
Hewitt Ltd, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on data
pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2022,

Mortality assumptions: 2022123 2021/22

Longevily at 65 current pensioners:  Men 22,2 years 21.8 years
Women 25.0 years 25.0 years

Longevity at 45 for future pensioners: Men 23.2 years 23.2 years
Women 26.4 years 26.4 years

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 2.70%%

Salary Increase Rate 4,20%

Discount Rate 4.70%

Pension Accounts Revaluation Rate 2.70%%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into
retirement lump sum:

Service to April 2009 80%
Service post April 2009 80%

Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions
used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined
benefit obligation as at 31 March 2023 is set out below.

In each case, only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same
and are summarised in the disclosure above.

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £159.905 £165.767
% change in the present value of the total obligation -1.80% 1.80%
Projected service cost (EMs) £5.314 £5.716
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.60% 3.70%
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Rate of General Increase in Salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMSs) £163.325 £162.347
% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.30% -0.30%
Projected service cost (EMs) £5.512 £5.512
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%

Rate of Increase to Pensions in Payment, Deferred Pensions Increase Assumption and
rate of Revaluation of Pension Accounts Assumption

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a.
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £165.279 £160.393
% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.50% -1.50%
Projected service cost (EMs) £5.716 £5.314
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.70% -3.60%

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption

Adjustment to the mortality age rating assumption * -1 Year +1 Year
Present value of the total obligation (EMs) £167.233 £158.439
% change in the present value of the total obligation 2.70% -2.70%
Projected service cost (EMs) £5.705 £5.319
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the
base table above for an individual that is 1 year older than them.

22f) Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund's assets consist of the following
categories, by proportion of the total assets held:
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Equity investments 41,300
Bonds 23.20%
Property 10.5084
Cash 5.90% ; ;
Other 19.10% 16.40%

o

22g) MNorthern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Morthern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangement 15 an unfunded multi-employer
defined benefit schemes but the Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities and therefore has accounted for this scheme as a defined contribution scheme.,
The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016. This valuation
is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled
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forward to the reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource
Accounts as at 31 March 2023.

23 Donated Assets Account

The Council does not have any donated assets for which conditions have not been met.

24 Capital Grants Received in Advance

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES).

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have
been applied to fund capital expenditure.

The Council has a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies
or property to be returned to the giver. The capital schemes with balances within Grants
Received in Advance at the year-end are as follows:

Notes  31/03/2023 i llvkiplvik]
£ £
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2022 -

Recognise Grants Receivable - conditions not

met

Greenways — Newtownards to Bangor 2,250,636
Greenways — Comber to Mewtownards 2,386,441
Bangor Waterfront 37,091,000

Transfer to CIES - conditions now met
Mone this year

N 00

Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023 41,728,077

These grants are reflected in Mote 16 on page 96.

25 Contingencies

In accordance with the Code (and I1AS 37), Councils should disclose by way of note if there is
a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the authority, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because;

a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligation, or
b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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25a) Self-lnsurance Scheme
The Council operates a self-insurance scheme for public and employee liability insurance. As
at 31 March 2023, claims with a total value of £1,036,600 had been lodged but continue to be
actively challenged. Whilst the Council continues to strongly contest liability in respect of
each of these claims, a provision has been made based on the Council's experience of
seftlement rates over the previous years., Movement on the Insurance Provision during the
vear 15 set out in note 20.

25b) Residual Waste Treatment Project

The arc2l Joint Committee has, with the approval of its participant Councils, entered into a
Contingent Liability Undertaking with the bidding consortium in the procurement for a
Residual Waste Treatment Project and Ards and Morth Down Borough Council has agreed
its share of the contingent liability. The risks of any potential financial penalties associated
with the procurement process are limited but payments, if any, become due in accordance
with this undertaking, they will be funded by the participant Councils. Mo further information
on this agreement can be disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of the procurement
process.

25c) Special Legal Regime = VAT Tribunal

The Council, together with the other 10 district councils in Marthern Ireland, is participating in
a legal action against His Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) to recover previously
overdeclared output VAT in respect of leisure and recreational income, which arose because
HMRC did not accept that the Council provides leisure and recreational activities pursuant to
a special legal regime without causing any significant distortion of competition. Although Mid
Ulster District Council (as lead council in the litigation) succeeded in its claim to the First Tier
Tax Tribunal, HMRC subsequently appealed to the Upper Tier Tax Tribunal, which was
successful. The Tribunal released its decision on 18 July 2022 to allow the appeal and remit
the matter back to the First Tier Tax Tribunal for consideration.

Mid Ulster District Council subsequently sought and received permission to appeal the Upper
Tier Tax Tribunal decision to the Court of Appeal and a Hearing was scheduled to take place
in May 2023. On 26 January 2023, HMRC notified Mid Ulster District Council that it decided
to pay all of the Local Authority Leisure Service claims and proceeded to publish an associated
Revenue and Customs Brief on 3 March 2023. Mid Ulster District Council’s appeal to the
Court of Appeal is currently stayed until 15 September 2023 to allow baoth parties to time o
seek a resolution of the matter. If resolution is reached, it will take time to conclude the matter;
alternatively, if there is no resolution, Mid Ulster District Council shall make application for its
appeal to be re-listed for mention. In either case, at this stage, it's too early to access any
associated financial impact, but if the matter is resolved to the Mid Ulster District Council’s
satisfaction, the benefit to this Council could be substantial.

25d) General

The Council has a number of other general Iitigious matters ongoing. It is uncertain whether
these matters will proceed to court or if they do, whether the courts will have reached a
decision in relation to them before the Council’s financial statements have been certified and
published. Council is of the opinion that, in the majority of matters, it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the claim. Council is also of the opinion that, in
any event, it 15 not possible to make a sufficiently reliable financial estimate of potential
contingent habilities for disclosure purposes.
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26 Other Cash Flow Notes

26a) Analysis of Adjustments to SurplusiDeficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 2022123 Strsle

services for non-cash movements: Motes E £
Depreciation 4 10,376,488 ER.LE- T
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale de-

rngmt'mns} { 4 1,462,930 (964,648)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 41,754 11,342
{Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 114,810
Increasef{Decrease) in impairment provision for bad debis 30,013
Increasef(Decrease) in Creditors 41,600,327
Increasef(Decrease) in Interest Creditors (93,087)

Pension Fund Adjustments 22 7,468,000

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 4 743648

AUC written off to Net Cost of Services -
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 73,098

Movement in value of Investment Properties =

Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 22 -

RO ol 15,534,541

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment Property and Intangible

Assets (798,742) EEEENRES)

(798,742) [EECIRLT)]

26b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and in bank and short-term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net
of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related tems in the Balance
Sheet as follows:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

£ £
Cash and Bank balances 2,743 1,403,275
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 9,500,000 9,000,000
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) - -
Bank Owverdraft (1,305,328)

8,197,415

10,403,275
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26c) Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

2022123 2021122
The cash flows from operating activities include: E £
Interest received 237,923 51,040
Interest paid 2,561,500 2,677,964

26d) Cash flows from Investing Activities

2022123 2021722
£
Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible assets 4,474,703
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment Property and (798,742)
Intangible Assets '
Capital Grants and contributions received 44,717,933
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 48,393,894
26e) Cash flows from Financing Activities
2022123 202122
£ £
Cash Receipts from Short and Long-Term Borrowing - -
Repayment of Short and Long-Term Borrowing (3,135,428) EERGERYVEEY
MNet Cash flows from Financing Activities (3,135,428) (6,170,265)

27 Usable Reserves
27a) Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have oniginated primarily from the sale of assets which have
not yet been used to finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other
monies defined by statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gainfloss on disposal and
posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts Reserve. The
reserve is written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set
aside to reduce an authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes
permitted by statute).

Motes  31/03/2023 gEcsTliklfl .

E E
At1 April 3,326,843 [EERSLENT
Movement
Disposal of Mon-Current Assels/ Capital Sales 4, 26 798,742 1,850,159
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure  28a, 13 (469,969) (142,620)
At 31 March 3,656,406 [ LRk

Capital receipts received on the disposal of non-current assets is made up as follows:
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« £206k in relation to land, vehicles and equipment sales disposed of during the year;

« £593k from the Department for Infrastructure for land vested in previous years, for
which the statutory processes have not yet completed.

27b) Capital Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from
that grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or
contribution shall be transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable
reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a capital resource available to
finance expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is
incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital
resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in Reserves
Statement or in the notes to the accounts.

Motes 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
£
At 1 April
Movement 2,500,040
Received in year 3,123,009
Transferred to CAA in year (591,026)
At 31 March 5,032,113

The closing balance is made up of £2,015,947 COVID 19 Recovery Small Settlements
Regeneration Programme funds along with £2,909,000 BRCD Bangor Waterfront funds and
£107,167 of COVID-19 Recovery Revitalisation Programme funds.

27c) Revenue Grants Unapplied account

Where a revenue grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from
that grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or
contribution shall be transferred to the Revenue Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable
reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a resource available to finance
expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statemant.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is
incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the Revenue
Grants Unapplied Account to the General Fund, reflecting the application of revenue
resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in Reserves
Statement or in the notes to the accounts.
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Motes 3110312023 REdNlikiFrlirr
E E
At 1 April 301,460 279,305
Movement
Received in year 603,142 301,460
Released from reserve (37,428) FTEREIEY

At 31 March 10h 867,174 301,460

II&

The closing balance is made up of £250,000 Levelling Up Funding; £344,027 DIC Hardship
funding; £134,115 TEO Dispersal funding; £118,856 COVID Recovery Small Settlements

Regeneration Programme funds; £20,176 COVID-19 Recovery Revitalisation Programme
funds.

27d) Earmarked Reserve

The Council has established an Earmarked Reserve under Section 9(1) of the Local
Government Finance Act (NI) 2011 for the purposes of setting aside funds required for future
purposes, for example to set up an innovation fund or to smoaoth the cost of elections.

Motes 31/03/2023 EEEsTlikiFlrr]

E E
At 1 April 13,426,200 EELEE:y et
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & . 219 7
the General Fund ab (2.669,751) EElEE
Transfers between Capital Fund, Renewal &
Repair Fund & CAA to finance capital 12 (6,422)
expenditure

At 31 March 10,750,027

The Earmarked Fund balance is made up of Identified Workstreams E4,853k; Periodic
Workstreams £897k; Transformation Fund £3,000k; Sustainability Fund £1,250k; Tax Base
development Fund £750k. The Council received COVID-19 Funding Support of £1.538M from

the Department for Communities in earlier years. There was no unspent funding left in the
Earmarked Fund at the end of 2022/23.

27e) General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the yvear of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District
Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be

different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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28

28a)

At 1 April

Applied Capital Grants

Unapplied Capital Grants received in year
Unapplied Revenue Grants rec'd in year
Direct Revenue Financing

Depreciation and Impairment adjustment
Statutory Provision for financing Capital
Investment

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute

Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision of Services
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves
and the General Fund

Met movements on Pension Reserve

Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales
Difference between finance and other costs and
income calculated on an accounting basis and
finance costs calculated in accordance with
statutory requiremants

Other Movements

At 31 March

Unusable Reserves

Capital Adjustment Account

MNotes

Back to Agenda

31/03/2023 ETEEE
£ 3
5,487,523 4,527,365
(1,297,109) (455,971)
(3,123,009) [EEERRe)
(565,715) (22,154)
(296,141) (168,839)
11,839,418 8,892,239
(5,603,100) [NEREER)
688,210
(11,695,777)
2,669,751
7,468,000
(55,004)
26,605

5,443,473 5,487,523

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assels under stalutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve 1o comvert

fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recaognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2008, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
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Motes 310312023 3L/03/2022
E £

At 1 April 81,580,592 81,805,589
Applied Capital Grants 4.10c 1,397,109 455,971
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred —

. o722
to CAA in year 27b 591,026 1,706,072
Direct Revenue Financing 4,13 206,141
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 12 (11.839,418)
Statutory Provision for financing
Capital Investmenit 4 a1
Net Revenue expenditure funded from
Capital under statute 4,13 (688,210)
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital
Sales 4,8 (743,648)
Capital Receipts used to finance 13,
capital expenditure 27a e
Other Movements 4,349,987
Transfers between Capital Fund or
Repairs and Renewals Fund & CAAto 13 6,422
finance capital expenditure
At 31 March B1,022.280 81,580,592

28b) Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in
the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced
when assets with accumulated gains are:

«  revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
« used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

= disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the
reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account,

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or
downwards) of individual assets. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have
been debited to Surplusf{Deficit) on the Provision of Services) are mirrored in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, It is a fundamental principle of this account that it
never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance
held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Notes  31/03/2023 31/03/2022

£ £
AL 1 April 86,187,908 79,999,277
Revaluation & Impairment 12 20,108,591 10,675,518
Other Movements (4,349,987 (4,486,887)
At 31 March 101,946,512 86,187,908
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28c) Pension Reserve
Full details on the Pension Reserve are disclosed in Note 22.
Motes allciklikkl  31/03/2022
E E
At 1 April (46,921,000) HEDHEXL)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,22b  (7,468,000) EEEEEEK )]
Revaluation & Impairment 22h 57,650,000 RNy
At 31 March 3,261,000 WEIK:FSRILL)]
28d) Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement from accruing for compensated
absences eamed but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave entittement carried forward
at the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are in place to ensure that the impact
on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is neutralised by transfers to or
from this Accumulated Absences Account.

Motes 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

£
At 1 April (694,824)
Adjustments in relation to short term
accumulated absences 4 (26,605)
At 31 March (721,429)

29. Significant Trading Operations
The Council did not operate any significant trading operations during the 2022/23 financial
WEar.

30. Related Party Transactions

A related party is one that has the ahility to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes
cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but
excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and
Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition, where the
relationship between the Council and the entity is solely an Agency agreement, this is not
deemed to be a Related Party Transaction.

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged. They exclude transactions with any other entity that
is a related party solely because of its economic dependence on the Council or the
Government of which it forms part.

All transactions detailed below have been entered into in full compliance with the Council's
Standing Orders.
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Organisations in which Councillors have an interest

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. During the
year, the Council paid for works and services amounting to £1,601k (2021/22: £1,559k) from
organisations in which individual Councillors have an interest. In the majority of cases this
was not a personal interest, but rather they were representing Council. The main recipient
within this total is £1,574k (2021/22; £1,545k) to the Northern Community Leisure Trust.

The Council also paid grants and contributions of £751k (2021/22: £679k) to a number of
organisations in which Councillors represented the Council's interest. The main grants and
contributions were £412k paid to Community Advice Ards and Morth Down; £59k paid to the
Morthern Ireland Local Government Association and £154k paid to Open House Festival Ltd.
These grants and contributions were made with proper consideration of declaration of
interests.

Joint Committees and Other Councils

The Council is a member of the arc21 Joint Committee which is established for the purposes
of managing waste. arc21 accounts for its funding by the provision of a statement of accounts
which is prepared under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations 2015.
During the year the Council incurred expenditure of £7,092k (2021/22; £6,700k) and received
income of £295k (2021/22: £169K).

Council also received services amounting to £463k (2021/22; £305k) from other Councils and
provided services of £467k (2021/22: £408k) to other Councils.

Details of all amounts outstanding to Councils and Joint Committees at 31 March 2023 are
set gut in notes 16 and 19.

The Council started the year with treasury deposits of £9M, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. The Council is required to invest
its treasury funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments
before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. During the year the Council placed three
short term investments with three other Councils one of which for £3,000K was still on deposit
at the end of the financial year.

Other Public Bodies

In the course of the year, the Council incurred expenditure of £2 285k (2021/22: £2 417k) to
other public bodies. £647k (2021/22: £597K) was in respect of property rates; £86k (2021/22:
£91k) was in relation pension contributions. The balance of the amounts mainly relates to
services received and the Council contribution towards the development and configuration of
the regional planning IT system (E270K). The Council received other income of £734k
(2021722: £670k) from other public bodies for services provided,

The Council made principal and interest loan repayments of £5,348k to the Department of
Finance. An analysis of amounts outstanding to both the Department and other institutions
al 31 March 2023 are set out in note 18h.

Details of amounts outstanding are set out in notes 16 and 19.

Council received grants from other public bodies of £6,043k (2021/22: £5.371k), including
Department for Communities £1,950k (2021/22; £2,271k).
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31. Ewvents after the Reporting Period
There were no events occurring after the 31 March 2023 which require adjustment to the
Council's financial statements or additional disclosures.

Accounts Authorised for Issue Certificate

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these for issue on 29 September 2023,
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